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Corporate Information
NEER
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Financial Summary
MBEE

RESULTS

Year ended
31 December
2020
—ECEfF
+=A=+-H
HK$’000
THER
Revenue Wz 25,689
Profit before tax BR 7% A & A 1,108
Income tax credit/[expense) FTE R %,/ (%) 919
Profit for the year NEEFEA 2,027

Profit attributable to KAREAA
owners of the Company ~ [E{5 &7 2,027

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at

31 December
2020

=t 53 L&
t=A=+-A
HK$’000

TR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER & &

Total assets EEHLE 439,508
Total liabilities afERE (16,604)
Net assets FEE 422,904

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-NEF —E-N\%& —E—+tF —E-REF
+ZA=+—8 +ZA=+-8B +ZA=+—-H +zZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTEL FTEL FTET
42,005 39,146 35,829 28,827
10,219 10,773 9,325 1,614
(757) (1,357) (1,089 41
9,462 9,416 8,236 1,555
9,462 9,416 7,947 1,666

EERAE
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-NF —E-N\%F —E—+F —E-RE
tZA=+t-8 +tZA=+-B +zZA=+-H +ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL FTAEL AL
430,302 420,600 416,208 445,070
(19,148 (16,187) (14,950 (15,795)
411,154 404,413 401,258 429,275




PER SHARE DATA

As at

31 December
2020
—E-EE

—=<—=

TZA=t-H

HK Cents
A

Earnings per share

FHRA 0.18

Net book value per share

SRETFE 36.92

Financial Summary (Continued)

MEREE (&)
BERER

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-NEF —E-N\E —E—+tF —E-REF
+-A=+-8 +-A=t-R t-A=t-8 +-A=t-A
HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents
Al Al Al Al
0.83 0.82 0.69 0.18
35.89 35.66 35.40 37.88

RBEZRERLE —ZT-TFH
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Financial Summary (Continued)
MBRE (&)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EARNINGS PER SHARE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
KARHEAEGRER BRER
(excluding extra-ordinary items) (excluding extra-ordinary items)
(T BEFLFHER) (T"BEFELFHIEE)
HK$'000 T HK Cents 71l
10,000 1.0

8,000 0.8
6,000 0.6
4,000 0.4
2,000 0.2
| 1 B B

0.
Asat 31/12/2016 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 Asat 31/12/2016 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020

EE BE

NET BOO}( VALUE PER SHARE
BREREFE
40

HK Cents 1Ll
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As of 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

Financial Summary (Continued)

2020
= = 5
HK$’000
BET T

Financial highlights
Revenue
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(HK cents per share)
Basic
Diluted

Average daily room rate
Hotel occupancy rate

Liquidity ratios

Current ratio

Average trade receivables turnover
days!”

Capital ratio
Gearing ratio®

MBERE
Y &
REBF

FhaF
(BRBOEL)
K
P

FHEBXRFEE
BIE A X

RBESLR
mE L&

¥ E 5 EMEHRA
Sl PN 28

Edtbx
BEAMBL KA

25,689
2,027

0.18
0.18

RMB
AR®
296

42.09%

Notes:

(1)

MBHEE)
2019 Changes
—E-NF )
HK$’000 %
BT T %
42,005 (38.85%)
9,462 (78.58%)
0.83 (78.31%)
0.83 (78.31%)
RMB
AR
315 (6.03%)
81.52% (48.37%)
4.10
14.2
1.22%

Average trade receivables turnover days is equal to the average of the beginning (1) TFTHESEWRERERBENE FHERRIE RE

and closing trade and bills receivables balance divided by turnover and muiltiplied

by the number of days in the year.

Gearing ratio equals non-current liabilities divided by total equity.

AFERRE -

KRB FEN RFRERDTHERANEER BF

@ EAEARLXINFRSEERAEDEE-
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company together with our subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020” or the “current
year” or “reporting year” or the “year under review”) to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$25.69 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 38.85% as compared to approximately HK$42.01
million in the corresponding period last year.

Net profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$2.03
million (2019: HK$9.46 million).

Earnings per share was approximately 0.18 HK cents for year ended

31 December 2020 (2019: Earning per share 0.83 HK cents).

Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) increase by approximately
HK$11.76 million to approximately HK$422.91 million as compared
with HK$411.15 million as at 31 December 2019.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

PROSPECTS

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) has caused
great damage to tourism and hotel industry. With the gradual control
of the epidemic and the recovery of the industry, the Group will grasp
the long term development trend of tourism and related industries by
relying on our advantages in Fujian Province, confront challenges,
deploy and implement business strategies in order to enhance our
internal driving force and long-term competitiveness for our
sustainable development, thereby providing foundation for our future
development.

In addition, the Group will speed up its review of its existing business
and continuously update its business plans and strategies to keep
pace with future development. On the basis of consolidating existing
business, we will strengthen the integration of hotel resources,
tourism Industry and resources industry and expand into new
business formats to achieve diversification of our income source. At
the same time, the Group will conduct optimisation in internal
procedures and enhance management efficiency to regulate and plan
for future development strategies with innovative thinking, so as to
fully stimulate and enhance the potential and intrinsic values of
corporate resources.

Our overall objective is to better utilise the Group’s resources in order
to maximise every shareholder’s interest.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to
all shareholders, business partners and customers for their support,
and to all our colleagues for their efforts, hard work and dedication.
Their hardwork represents the foundation of the Group’s future
business development.

Chen Yangbiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 reduced from HK$9.46 million in 2019 to
HK$2.03 million for the year under review. Profit reduce was mainly
due to () the decrease of around 46.35% in revenue from hotel
operations for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to
the revenue from hotel of approximately HK$34.84 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019; (ii) loss arising on change in fair value of
investment properties for the year 2020.

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$25.69 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 38.85% from approximately HK$42.01
million in the previous year. The decrease is mainly due to the reduce
in business volume of star-rated hotel operation during the period
under review.

Given our good balance sheet status, our cash generation ability and
financial position continues to be strong. As at 31 December 2020,
the gearing ratio (dividing non-current liabilities by equity plus non-
current liabilities multiplied by 100 which results in a percentage) of
the Group was 0.6% (2019: 1.2%).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

A. Star-rated hotel operation

Since 2018, the hotel has introduced new management model
by carrying out professional manager system reform,
successfully restored the title of four-star by passing verification
and was also awarded the honor of “the Top 100 Conference
Hotel of China”.

Star-rated hotel operation is the main source of revenue for the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the turnover of
the hotel operation was approximately HK$18.69 million (2019:
HK$34.84 million), representing a decrease of approximately
46.35% from the corresponding period of last year. The
decrease mentioned above is mainly attributable to the
significant decrease in number of tourists in Mainland China
brought by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the
financial year of 2020.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discuss

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

A.

Star-rated hotel operation (continued)

For the period under review, the average occupancy rate was
approximately 42.09% (2019: 81.52%), representing a decrease
of 48.4% over the corresponding period of last year. Average
daily rate (ADR) was approximately RMB296 (2019: RMB315)
representing a decrease of 6% over the corresponding period
of last year.

The following table sets out the amount and percentage of
contributions from different businesses of the star-rated hotel
operation for the year ended 31 December 2020, together with
comparative figures as of 31 December 2019:

ion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWED N (&)

% 3% [O] B ()

ERBEIEEE @

MREIFEEA - FHAERL E42.09% (=
T —NF :81.52%) + B X F i FE B EE HA
N TPE448.4% - THERXEEBRINAA
R#206L (ZE—N&F : AR¥ESZ15TT)
BEAFTHEDBEHANTEL6% -

AEEERBELEBRE_Z_ZF+
“A=t—BLZEE E0BEBHNE
XBENEHEXEEAOHLE_FT-NF
TZA=t—BREHALRMT:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
—E_ZE2H+-HA=+—-H ZZE-NFT+ZH=1+—H

HKS$ in

thousand

FET

Accommodation revenue % = 5% I A 9,482
Catering revenue BRI A 6,897
Rental revenue o AR WA 1,638

Others Hib 676

18,693

Accommodation revenue

The accommodation revenue was mainly determined by the
number of available rooms, occupancy rate and ADR of the
Group’s hotel. During the year under review, the
accommodation revenue of star-rated hotel was approximately
HK$9.48 million, representing a decrease of approximately
55.17% over the corresponding period of 2019.

% of HKS$ in % of
revenue thousand revenue

FTERT TET TET

51% 21,162 61%
37% 9,898 28%
9% 2,770 8%
3% 1,023 3%

100% 34,843 100%

ERHEEKRA
ERERKRAFTFZE AR AEBGEN
AEHERE AERLKFHBREE-
REBEHA 2ERGEEEFHAHHEKRA
BHR0ABERETT W _T— NFERE T
#155.17% °

RBEZERARNE —Z-TFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwWED (&)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

A.

Star-rated hotel operation (Continued)

Accommodation revenue (Continued)

The rising cost of operating environment and hit by COVID-19
remain the key challenge for the hotel industry. To overcome
these adversities, the hotel management broadens their
business ideas, strives for the cultural and business clients,
especially enhances their sales effort on acquiring conference
and training related clients. Conference related customers
account for 49% of the total. The group will continue to
implement tight cost control measures and seek further
improvement in operational efficiency to minimize the adverse
impacts.

Catering revenue

Since 2015, the Group has made a major effort to develop the
catering business through the hotel. During the period under
review, catering revenue of approximately HK$6.90 million
representing approximately 36.89% of the hotel operation’s
turnover.

Improved customer services and better hotel facilities are core
competitive advantages to seize the growth opportunity in local
tourism and restaurant industries. The Board believes that the
hotel business in Xiamen will contribute positively to the Group.
Meanwhile, the hotel is taking measures to deal with the
epidemic situation, practising skills, diversifying our operations
and enhancing sales force regarding wedding banquet, catering
and related services as well.

Looking forward, hospitality business is gradually resuming full
operations as mainland has entered the phase of regular
epidemic prevention and control.

Rental revenue

In order to stabilise the income of the hotel operation, the hotel
leased out the spaces in the Group’s hotel. This contributed to
approximately HK$1.64 million in rental revenue during the year
under review, representing approximately 9% of the hotel
operation’s turnover.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

B.

Hong Kong properties held by the Group

As at 31 December 2020, all properties in Hong Kong held by
the Group were 100% rented out.

During the period under review, the rental income of the
properties in Hong Kong was approximately HK$7 million,
compared to last year representing a decrease of approximately
2.23%. The decrease is mainly due to relief provided to tenants
on a case-by-case basis. The Group recorded approximately
HK$7.16 million in rental income of properties in Hong Kong for
the corresponding period of last year.

Piano manufacturing

The Group diversified its business into piano manufacturing by
acquiring a 25% equity interest in Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co.
Ltd. (“Harmony Piano”) in 2005. This business interest has
brought a steady profit to the Group for the past few years. The
Group recorded a share of profit from its interest in Harmony
Piano approximately HK$0.6 million for the year under review
(2019: loss of approximately HK$80,000).

Finance leasing

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the interest in associate
contributed approximately HK$9.09 million profit for the year
(2019: profit of approximately HK$3.4 million).

EEENWED (&)

% 3% [O] B ()

B. 8%
HE_ZEZ-_FEF+_HA=+—8 &~&£H
W) % 7 A8 R A 100% o
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70088 REAF R T 42.23%
R RAERAFIRHEAS RS - A%
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WERE
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MBHEROERAR (TMEHME])25%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Looking forward into 2021, the Group will adhere to the corporate
strategy using investment management and operation management
as a core method for achieving continuous value-based growth. On
the one hand, the Group will continue its searches for assets with
healthy profitability and excellent growth potential as long-term
investment through investment management. On the other hand, it
will establish a group-level multi-dimensional operation-supporting
system covering among others, brand operation, management
information, human resources and supply chain to advance operation
efficiency, lower costs and enhance brand influence.

The near-term economic performance is facing notable downward
pressure from COVID-19. However, economic fundamentals of the
Mainland are solid and it is expected to have adequate policy tools to
maintain macro-economic stability. Once the epidemic is over, the
economy of Mainland China will keep growing. The increase of
disposable income per capita, the rise of urbanisation level and the
accelerating pace of life remain the base driving forces behind the
long-term and constant growth of China’s hotel industry.

The Group will strive to seize the opportunity presented by the reform
of state-owned assets, give full play to the strengths of Fujian Tourism
Development Group Company Limited (“FTDC”) as “Top 20
advantage Tourism Group in China” and actively seek new
breakthroughs in the field of tourism-related and other business
areas. Furthermore, the Group will also accelerate the reform in the
area of institutional mechanisms, promote the effective integration of
the group resources by the combination of industry and capital, and
integrate the industry chains of hotel, tourism and resource industries.
Meanwhile, we will expand into new business formats to achieve
diversification of our income source, so as to further increase our
overall asset return and enterprise value.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

INTRODUCTION OF NEW INVESTOR BY
FUJIAN HUAMIN LEASING COMPANY
LIMITED

The Capital Increase

In order to meet the requirements of both the financial industry and
the Group’s operational development. The Board is pleased to
announce that the Company received a resolution from Fujian Huamin
Leasing Company Limited (“Fujian Huamin Leasing”) on 18 December
2020 to increase its registered capital from RMB170,000,000 to
RMB270,000,000. The Company decided to relinquished the pre-
emption right for this capital injection which are calculated on a
proportional basis under the Proposed Capital Injection as an original
shareholder, and agree Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company
Limited (“FHIG”) to contribute of RMB73,000,000 and Fujian Mingang
Enterprises Co. Ltd. (“FMEC”) to contribute of RMB27,000,000
instead. Upon completion of the capital increase, the interest of the
Company in Fujian Huamin Leasing will be reduced to 25.19%. FHIG
will own 64.81% and FMEC will own 10% of the interest in Fujian
Huamin Leasing respectively.

In addition, share premium totalling RMB31,239,400 arising on the
settlement of the Capital Increase will recognise in Capital Reserve in
the period in which arise.

Information on FHIG and The Investor

FHIG

The issued share capital of FHIG is 100% beneficially owned by
owned by FTDC, a state-owned corporation under the control and
supervision of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Fujian Province (“FJSOASAC”) in the PRC.

Investor

FMEC

FMEC is a limited company established in the PRC. The issued share
capital of FMEC is 100% beneficially owned by FIHC, which is in turn
100% beneficially owned by FHIG, which is in turn 100% beneficially
owned by FTDC, a state-owned corporation under the control and
supervision of FUISOASAC in the PRC.

The capital increase process is expected to be completed on or
before 30 June 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the total share capital of the Company was
HK$898,839,029 divided into 1,145,546,000 ordinary shares.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a net cash balance of
approximately HK$55.70 million (2019: HK$55.97 million). The
Group’s net asset value (assets less liabilities) was approximately
HK$422.91 million (2019: HK$411.15 million), with a liquidity ratio (ratio
of current assets to current liabilities) of 4.16 (2019: 4.10). During the
year under review, there was no material change in the Group’s
funding and treasury policies. The Directors do not expect the
Company to experience any problem with liquidity and financial
resources in the foreseeable future.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not charged any of its
assets. (2019: Nil)

Funding and Treasury Policies

The funding and treasury policies of existing subsidiaries of the Group
are centrally managed and controlled by the Group’s senior
management in Hong Kong.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policies are designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its
centralised treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility
and adequate liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential
investments and growth, the Group has built a strong base of funding
resources and will keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

There was no outstanding bank loan and other borrowing by the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capitalised Borrowing Costs

No borrowing cost was being capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate and
Related Hedges

There has been no significant change in the Group’s policy in terms
of exchange rate exposure. The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. Most of the transactions and cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and in
Renminbi (“‘RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due
to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Moderate
fluctuation of RMB against HK$ was expected. The Group considered
the foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable. However,
management of the Group will monitor foreign exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when necessary.

As most of the Company’s business operations are located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, the Company faces foreign currency risks
due to exchange gain/loss from exchange rate fluctuations as well as
currency conversion risk due to converted net asset value fluctuations
of investment projects in Mainland China. To effectively manage
foreign currency risk, the Company closely monitors foreign exchange
markets, and utilises multiple strategic approaches, such as
optimising cash management strategy and project finance
instruments, to manage foreign exchange risk.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year under review, there were no material acquisition or
disposal of any subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the Group.
Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group’s capital expenditure was
HK$0.63 million (2019: HK$0.2 million). There was no outstanding
capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Contingent Liability

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability during the
year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

Major Events

Save as aforesaid, the Group had no material capital commitments
and no future plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2020.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 132
employees in Hong Kong and Xiamen. The remuneration package
was determined with reference to performance and the prevailing
market rate. The Group also provides employees with training, the
opportunity to join its mandatory provident fund scheme and medical
insurance cover.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In response to
specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards of dealings as set out in the
Model Code during the year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEN Yangbiao, aged 60, joined the Company in August 2018.
He is an Executive Director and Chairman of Board of Directors of the
Company. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the
Group.

Mr. Chen is currently secretary of Communist Party Committee,
chairman of the board of directors and legal representative of Fujian
Tourism Development Group Co., Ltd. (f8 24 ikizEEEE AR A R)
(“FTDC”), the chairman of Fujian Enterprises (Holdings) Company
Limited EER(EE)AEFR A 7]), he is in charge of the overall work. Mr.
Chen is also an alternate member of the 10th Fujian Provincial
Committee of the Communist Party of China (‘CPC”) (f Bl EEE
FEZEZE®), a member of 12th Fujian Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B A REBUA T
e EEE Z B€) and deputy director of the Agriculture and Rural
Affairs committee. Mr. Chen was also awarded as the 17th session of
Excellent Entrepreneur of Fujian Province. He is also an expert
consultant of Fujian Tourism Development Committee (&2 4& hi iz 35
EZE®). In 2018, Mr. Chen was awarded the honorary of the 40
Fujian’s most influential entrepreneurs in the 40 years of the reform
and opening-up.

Mr. Chen holds a bachelor's degree in engineering from Fujian
Forestry College (f&8#ZMER) and a master’'s degree in scientific
socialism professional from Party School of the Central Committee of
CPC (it hZE4H). Mr. Chen has extensive experience in
administration, corporate and capital management. In 2015, he led
the establishment of FTDC, built the leading tourism enterprise in
Fujian Province and led FTDC to the top 20 of China Tourism Groups
for four consecutive years. Mr. Chen has taken up a number of
management posts including Vice Mayor of Wuyishan City, Fujian
Province, Director of Planning and Finance Department of Fujian
Tourism Bureau, a member of Party Group and the Deputy Director
of Fujian Tourism Bureau, the chairman of Fujian Enterprises (Holdings)
Company Limited and secretary of Communist Party Committee,
chairman of the board of directors and legal representative of FTDC.
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Directors’ Biography (Continued)
EEEE (E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. CHEN Danyun, aged 56, joined the Company in August 2015.
She is Executive Director and General Manager of the Company. She
is responsible for the general operation and management of the
Company and to execute the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Ms. Chen has over 30 years of experience in international trade,
corporate management and investment management. Ms. Chen
graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’'s degree in
economics and obtained her Master of Business of Administration
degree from Murdoch University in Australia. She is a senior
economist.

Mr. CHEN Yang, aged 56, is the Executive Director and Vice General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in June 2015
and assists the general manager in the daily operations of the Group.

Mr. Chen has approximately 30 vyears’ experience in finance
management. Mr. Chen has taken up a number of management
posts, including a vice general manager of Fuzhou Harmony Piano
Co., Ltd. (&N AEF i Z A% 17 B R A7), a vice general manager of the
finance department of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company
Limited (fRiEZEREZE(EE)AR A7) and the financial controller of
Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited. Mr. Chen
obtained his bachelor degree in economics from Xiamen University in
the PRC. Mr. Chen is a senior economist.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Qiang, aged 54, is the assistant of General Manager of
Fujian Tourism Development Group Company Limited (“FTDC”), the
Director of Investment and Planning Department of FTDC, the
chairman and general manager of Fujian Tourism Investment Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. Feng joined the Group in January 2005.

He spent years of research in the Chinese Academy of Social Science
at Fujian for corporate strategies and reforms. He also has practical
experience in corporate investment planning, operational management
and corporate restructuring during his service in the government of
Fujian Province and its related companies. Mr. Feng has over 30
years’ corporation and investment management experience.

Mr. Feng has a bachelor degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

HITEE @)

RAELL 565 AKREATEFTRAK
B-RZIRN_ZT-—HFN\ANBAEE K
HTABEHRLEEETERATASEER
Z R o

MEZTRBIBREES CXEERREEREIR
HEBBNFLER R TRHEEMARKELK
224 B KR K F 51 8 K 2 (Murdoch
University) 7 T EEIBE T 20 - K A RLE
B

REXLE 6 AKEEATEEREAAL
B-REEANR_FT-HAFENANELAEE 8
BEppRgERTASEREEEZEK -

PREARIISEIE FEES LO30F K5 o it
A HEZEERBMA - 2EEMNNENZR
MERAABBLE EEEHEE(EERE
RAR Gl BB RERKREERBRA
A ERE BREEHRATRHEMAELES
BB Rt R RSER -

FHTES

BREE 5457 BEERFEEEEEERA
B[R EE]) ARIBEIE R EREILE(F
LEEREREEBEERANEETRE K

B BAER_ZETAF-ANBELAEE -

BELEBRAERELENBERNELERR
BRMOXNENMET I TEERAERE
EREBABAAM ¥ RELERERE
REEEMEXBEHENER TIE- BRERD
XEENMKEEE T EAHBBBI0FNER -

HEERA LBHERBR

EEER LR



Directors’ Biography (Continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. WANG Ruilian, aged 57, is a non-executive director of the
Company, and Mr. Wang was an executive director and general
manager of the Company from July 2006 to October 2015. With
effect from 19 October 2015, Mr. Wang has resigned as executive
director and general manager of the Group and has been re-
designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director.

Mr. Wang has over 35 years’ experience in management and finance.
Mr. Wang has previously been sent to oversea companies to take up
a number of senior management posts, including a director and vice
general manager of the Finance Department of Fujian Investment and
Development Company Limited, and the managing director of Fujian
Enterprises (Hungary) Co., Ltd. Currently, he is a director of finance
department of Fujian Tourism Development Group Company Limited
(FTDC).

Mr. Wang acquired his bachelor degree in economics from Xiamen
University in the PRC and master degree of International Management
from Australian National University in Australia.

Ms. WENG Weijian, aged 49, joined the Company in September
2018 as non-executive director.

Ms. Weng graduated in the major of finance and accounting from
Minjiang University and in the major of law from East China University
of Political Science and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has over 25 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, accounting, assets management and
financial management. She is currently the Supervisor of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments Company
Limited and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited. She is currently a Chief Auditor of Min Xin Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 00222), and also a director of Land Hot (Hong Kong)
Limited, Jian Xing Finance Limited, Jian Xing International Investments
Limited, Fancy Time Investment Limited and Sino Earn Holdings
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Directors’ Biography (Continued)
EEEE (E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu, Gss, aged 86, was the representative of the
National People’s Congress (10th Session). He is currently the vice
chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited, the honorary
chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Association, the life
honorary chairman of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce, the
vice chairman of Fujian-Hong Kong Economic Cooperation, the life
honorary chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
and the Adviser of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association,
the honorary president of Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong. Mr.
Lam is also the Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China
International Limited, Yuzhou Properties Company Limited, Xinyi
Glass Holdings Limited, Far East Consortium International Limited
and Skymission Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the
HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003 and HKSAR Gold Bauhinia Star
in 2016.

Mr. Lam joined the Group and was appointed as independent non-
executive director in 11 December 2003.

Mr. NG Man Kung, aged 69, graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an attendance certificate in banking. Mr. Ng has been
senior management in banking industry of Hong Kong for 28 years.
He was appointed as the Managing Director and General Manager of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 1992 and the vice-chairman
and Chief Executive of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 2001.
He retired from Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 2012. Mr. Ng
was a member of the council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
from April 1999 to March 2003 and was a member of Fujian Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Ng was served as a management consultant
of China Orient Asset Management (International) Holdings Limited
from January 2014 to April 2015. Mr. Ng was served as a non-
executive director of Roma Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072-GEM)
from 24 August 2017 to 18 December 2017. Currently, Mr. Ng serves
as an independent non-executive director of ELL Environmental
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01395) from 5 September 2014, an
independent non-executive director of HKBridge Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 02323) from 23 March 2016, the Chairman of
Supervisor Committee of Well Link Bank in Macau from 31 March
2018 and an independent non-executive director of Green Future
Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science Company Limited (Stock Code:
1084) from 25 September 2019.

Mr. Ng joined the Group and was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 30 June 2014.
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Directors’ Biography (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTO RS (Continued)

Ms. LIU Mei Ling Rhoda, aged 59, joined the Group on 1 January
2019 as independent non-executive director, chairman of audit
committee, and committee member of nomination committee and
remuneration committee.

Ms. Liu is a Member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants, Fellow Practicing Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Fellow Member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and Fellow Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Liu holds a Bachelor of Art Degree in
Finance and Commercial Studies from University of Western Ontario
in Canada, Professional Degree in China Law from Tsinghua
University in China, and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from McMaster University in Canada. Ms. Liu is currently a Practicing
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and sole proprietor of Liu &
Wong, Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Liu is an independent non-
executive director and the chairperson of the audit committee of
Modern Health Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 919).

Ms. Liu is @ member of the 12th Liaoning Provincial Committee of The
Chinese People’s Palitical Consultative Conference.
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Directors’ Report
EERE

The Directors present the annual report and the consolidated audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, hotel
business and property investment and those of its subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
principal activities and geographical area of operation for the year

ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the financial status of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 72 to 76.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the statement of net assets/liabilities of
the Group for the last financial years is set out on pages 4 to 7.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EEeREHE_Z-_ZTFE+_A=+—HI
FEZFRNEERGATBIRE -

TEXBREEHED M

BIEEG R ER

ARAEBHEFREER
4 - BB B R B

HWBRARZEHKE
61 = o

AEEBRE_T_THFE+_A=1T-HLFE
BIBXBREZHEE N ZE %ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BAO T E N ARG M ISR M6

EXEBERDIK

AEBHE-_ZE-_TEF+_A=FT—HILFE
CEBERBAETRE URAEBRAQRGTRZ
E_EF+ A=+ —BFEHBRIAIRE
AU BHEKET2ETER ©

=)

EEETERZRE_F
FREMMBKE -

—FEHE+-A=+—H

MBRE

AEBERBEVBFEZEERFEEBE
WMERZBMEHNEL4ETE -



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the vyear, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 38.77% (2019: 27.81%) of the Group’s
total sales for the year and the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 6.19% (2019: 7.73%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 74.14% (2019: 42.87%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 19.73% (2019: 16.14%).

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of his/her associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out on page 74 and in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Details of the movements in right-of-use assets of the Group are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2020, the investment properties of the Group were
revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor and property
valuer on an open market value basis at HK$233.80 million. Details of
these and other movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in notes 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the share capital of the Company consisted
of 1,145,546,000 ordinary shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no continuing connected transactions
which were required to be disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

None of the related party transactions as set out in note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements constituted a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

As at the date of this report, no accidents involving serious injuries,
death or property damage has been reported to our management.
Furthermore, during the reporting period, we were not subject to any
claims arising from any material accidents involving personal injuries
or death or property damage that had a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operation. We were in
compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations regarding
occupational health and safety in all material respects during the
reporting period and as at the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Compliance

We are committed to minimise the impact of our activities on the
environment. To this end, various impact assessments have been
undertaken and policies created which are in line with international
best practices and long term sustainability.

The core values of our environmental policy are to meet all the
environmental legislations that relate to our operations.

In addition to full compliance with all laws relevant to sustaining and
improving the environment, we are committed to deploying
ecologically friendly construction techniques, materials and
operational procedures. It is policy of the Group to promote clean
operation and strives to making the most efficient use of resources in
its operations, and minimising wastes and emission. The Group
achieves this through actively re-designing its activities and operation
that encourage and promote recycling of resources, using
environmental friendly raw materials and reviewing operations
constantly to ensure that the processes are effective and efficient.

No environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management during the reporting
period. We are of the view that we were in compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in all material respects during the
reporting period and as at the date of this annual report.
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RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Economic risks

A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate, inflation and
fluctuations of interest rates would adversely affect the customers’
spending sentiment and the Group’s profit margin.

Operational risks

Failure to compete in the competitive environment which the Group

operates in;

Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in timely and
cost-efficient manner; and

Failure to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified
managerial, sales, marketing, operating, and technical personnel, the
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified
personnel.

Regulatory risks

Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain or

maintain all applicable permits and approvals;

Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other intellectual property
rights held by third parties; and

Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’ and
suppliers’ countries.

Financial risks

Details of financial risks are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. This includes providing the
Group’s customers with good quality services, and timely, appropriate
pre/after sales services. Similarly, the Group views its suppliers not
just vendors but as strategic partners, important links in its supply
chain. The Group’s procurement policy is to maintain good
relationship and communications with suppliers under the principal of
mutual trust. The Group considers its employees the key to
sustainable business growth. Workplace safety is priority of the
Group, and with due awareness of all employees throughout the year,
the Group was able to maintain safety workplaces.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, while the Company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong and the respective places of
incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

CHEN Yangbiao (Chairman of the board)
CHEN Danyun (Chief Executive)
CHEN Yang

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Qiang
WANG Ruilian
WENG Weijian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

LAM Kwong Siu
NG Man Kung
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 101 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Chen Yang, Mr. Feng Qiang and Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda shall
retire by rotation in the forthcoming annual general meeting and all,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biography of the Directors is set out on pages 19 to 23.

Directors’ Emoluments and the Five Highest
Paid Individuals

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY
DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares, and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EEEaEEw

AT REBERD 2HFR

Number of issued Percentage of

Director Type of interests ordinary shares held interest
e &7 R

B= FE = 5 Al EBEREE Aok

CHEN Danyun Personal 420,000 0.04%

BRAFE 18 A

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, none of the B EXFTi#EIN > REIBEFER  £F MTK

Directors and chief executive had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
engaged in any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors nor their respective associates
had any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group.
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INTERESTS IN ASSETS OF THE GROUP

During the year, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect
interests in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of, or
leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired or disposed of or
leased to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested directly or indirectly in
any contract or arrangement subsisting during or at the end of the
year under review which is significant in relation to the business of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, as far as is known to the Directors and the
Company, and as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry, the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company or had an option in respect of such capital were as follows:
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EEHE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERRKR@

Long positions in the shares of the Company KRR Z2HE

Number of  Percentage of total

shares of issued shares

Name of Shareholders the Company held of the Company (%)

ik S NN HERTEART
BRERERE vk = BROBEEBD L
HC Technology Capital Company Limited (“HC Technology”) 770,016,722 (a) 67.22
EGREEREER AR ([FERBHE]D
Fujian Investment Holdings Company Limited (“FIHC”) 786,948,772 (a) 68.70
ERREEEARAR(TERRE]D
Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited (“FHIG”) 786,948,772 (a) 68.70
EREREZ(KFE)ARAR(EREE]
Fujian Tourism Development Group Company Limited (“FTDC”) 786,948,772 (a) 68.70
RRARFEREEBER AR (KEEE])
Sino Earn Holdings Limited (“Sino Earn”) 72,558,382 (b) 6.33
ER(BEB)ERERAR(ESRE])
Fujian Huaxing Trust & Investment Company (“FHTI”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
RREHEFEREAR([EREEFED
Fujian Huaxing Industrial Company (“FHIC”) 72,558,382 (b) 6.33
EREMEE NG ([EHEE])
Fujian Huaxing Group Company Limited (“FHGC”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
RREAEESEEARET AR ([BRER])
Fujian Investment & Development Group 72,553,382 () 6.33

Company Limited (‘FIDG”)
EREAKRERAZESEEAREEAR(HAEEE]
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

() HC Technology and its associates hold 786,948,772 Shares (representing
approximately 68.70% of the issued share capital of the Company) among which (j)
770,016,722 Shares (representing approximately 67.22% of issued share capital
of the Company) are held by HC Technology and (i) 16,932,050 Shares
(representing approximately 1.48% of the issued capital of the company) are held
by Pinoge Company Limited. The issued share capital of each of HC Technology
and Pinoge is 100% beneficially owned by FIHC, which is in turn 100% beneficially
owned by FHIG, which is in turn 100% beneficially owned by FTDC, a state-
owned corporation under the control and supervision of FJISOASAC in the PRC.
Pursuant to the SFO, each of FIHC, FHIG and FTDC is deemed to be interested in
786,948,772 Shares.

(b) Sino Earn beneficially holds 72,553,382 Shares. The issued share capital of Sino
Earn is owned as to 30% by FHTI and 70% by FHIC respectively. Both of FHTI
and FHIC are 100% beneficially owned by FHGC, which is in turn 100%
beneficially owned by FIDG, a state-owned corporation in the PRC under the
control and supervision of FUISOASAC. Pursuant to the SFO, each of FHTI, FHIC,
FHGC and FIDG is deemed to be interested in 72,553,382 Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group which were entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged to
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in China are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government
of the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contribution payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)) which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
indemnity agreements made by the Company, which are currently in
force and were in force throughout the financial year, contained
permitted indemnity provisions (as permitted in Section 469(2) of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)), for the benefit of the Directors of
the Company. The Company has also taken out and maintained
Director’s liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In response to
specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards of dealings as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as of the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Yangbiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board of Directors (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance is one of the areas that
leads to the success of the Company and balances the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board is devoted
to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such
principles and practices.

The Company has fully complied throughout the year 2020 with the
applicable provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied all code
provisions as contained in the Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating the business
strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance of the
Group, approving the financial statements and annual budgets as well
as directing and supervising the management of the Company.
Execution of operational matters and the powers thereof are
delegated to the management by the Board with clear directions.

The Board comprises a total of nine Directors, three of whom are
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Board composition review will be made regularly to ensure that it has
a balance of expertise, skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group. In accordance with article
101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EMOLUMENT POLICY

All existing Executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary per annum
respectively. The remuneration of each Executive Director is subject
to review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in terms
of time, effort and his/her expertise. The emolument policy for Non-
executive Directors is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and the time dedicated to
the Company’s affairs, including their participation in the Board
Committees. Individual directors and senior management are not
involved in the determination of their own remuneration.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and senior
management during the year are disclosed in note 13 and note 14 to
the financial statements.

All Executive Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred during the performance of their duties to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are carried out by different individuals. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for the overall strategic formulation,
management and planning of our Group. The Chief Executive Officer
is Ms. Chen Danyun, who is responsible for business development
and day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

CHAIRMAN'’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Chief Executive
Officer are separate individuals, to maintain segregation of duties
between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. One important role of the
Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board. The Chairman has to
ensure that the Board works effectively, discharges responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. All Directors are consulted about matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated to the
Company Secretary the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for
each Board meeting.
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CHAIRMAN'’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

The Group supports the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group’s Chief Executive Officer has
been delegated such authority. The Board always acts in the best
interests of the Group, and all Directors have made full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board. Meeting between the
Chairman and the Independent Non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors has been scheduled as at least once a
year.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of Directors comprises three
Executive Directors namely Mr. CHEN Yangbiao (Chairman), Ms.
CHEN Danyun and Mr. CHEN Yang, three Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. FENG Qiang, Mr. WANG Ruilian and Ms. WENG WEeijian,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAM
Kwong Siu, Mr. NG Man Kung and Ms. LIU Mei Ling Rhoda. Details
of the Chairman and the other Directors of the Company are set out
in the section “Directors’ Biography” of this report.

With the various experience of both the Executive Directors and the
Non-executive Directors and the nature of the Group’s business, the
board considered that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). A summary of this policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing this policy and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a
diverse board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
board. In designing the board’s composition, board diversity has
been considered from a numbers of measurable aspects including
gender, age, ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regards for the
benefits of diversity on the board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the board.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives was summarised as follows:
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The nomination committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
Board Diversity Policy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The nomination committee reviewed the board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets regularly. For the year ended 31 December 2020, it
held five meetings. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled
in advance. All notices of the meeting of the Board will be made to
various directors at least 14 days prior to the meeting. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the memorandum of the
meeting as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Board
papers are circulated not less than three days before the Board
meetings, to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings and to offer them
sufficient time to review the documents. The company secretary
normally attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters
when necessary, as to ensure the compliance and maintenance of
sound corporate governance practice. The company secretary shall
prepare minutes and keep record of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board. All of
them are free to exercise their independent judgment. The Company
has received annual written confirmations from all Independent Non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence during the year
under review pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board members meet regularly, to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operational and financial performance of the Company.
Other Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
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Director 2= -
Chairman TE
CHEN Yangbiao BRi5 1% 3
Executive Directors HITESE
CHEN Danyun PR S} 2= 4
CHEN Yang bR 5 5
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
FENG Qiang Yok 3
WANG Ruilian F I bR 3
WENG Wesijian SR 5
Independent Non-executive Directors BHUIHBITEE
LAM Kwong Siu MBI 5
NG Man Kung RCHE 3
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda BxR 4
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of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for Board meetings.
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BOARD OF DlRECTORS (Continued)

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any
Director.

Insurance policy has been arranged to safeguard the interests of the
Directors in case of legal proceedings.

Independent Non-executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 11 December 2003 and reappointed
eight times with tenure of two years and expiring on 10 December
2021.

Mr. Ng Man Kung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 June 2014 and was reappointed
three times with tenure expiring on 29 June 2022.

Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda has appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 January 2019 and was
reappointed with tenure expiring on 31 December 2022.

However, their tenure is subject to retirement by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting in compliance with the amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Company and the Code on
Corporate Governance, under which they have to retire by rotation
and make themselves eligible for re-election.

Mr. Feng Qiang, Mr. Wang Ruilian and Ms. Weng Weijian were
appointed as Non-executive Directors on 27 January 2005, 19
October 2015 and 11 September 2018 respectively. All are subject to
retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in compliance
with the amended and restated Articles of Association of the
Company.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from the three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Ng Man Kung
and Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu have served the Board of the Company for more
than 16 years. He has clearly demonstrated his willingness to exercise
independent judgement and to provide objective challenges to the
management. There is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on his independence. The Board therefore considers
that Mr. Lam remain independent, notwithstanding the length of his
tenure.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors and have
concluded that all of them are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. Further, up to the date of this report, the Board is not
aware of the occurrence of any events, which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has been impaired.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises the importance of integrity of financial
information and acknowledges its responsibility for preparing interim
and annual financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group’s affairs and its results and cash flows in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Ordinance. In presenting the financial information, as well as price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures as required
by regulations, the Board endeavors to present in a timely manner to
shareholders and other stakeholders a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the
management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and
reasonable. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and which
enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards. Prior
to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting
policies, the relevant financial information is discussed between the
external auditors and the management, and then submitted to the
Audit Committee for review.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness annually.
Such systems are designed to prudently manage the Group’s risks
within an acceptable risk profile. The Board has delegated to
management the implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems as well as the review of relevant financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal control procedures.

The management under the supervision of the Board has established
an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the risk management and internal control systems when
there are changes in business, external environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The management assists the Board with the implementation of all
relevant policies and procedures on risk and control by identifying and
assessing the risks faced and designing, operating and monitoring
suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The key
processes that have been established in reviewing the adequacy and
integrity of the risk management and internal control systems include
the following:

A defined management structure is maintained with specified limits of
authority and control responsibilities, which is designed to (a)
safeguard assets from inappropriate use; (b) maintain proper
accounts; (c) ensure compliance with regulations; and (d) identify,
manage and mitigate key risks to the Group.

The Board reviews the financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and any significant internal
control issues identified by the internal audit team, external auditors
and management. It also conducts review of the internal audit
functions with particular emphasis on the scope and quality of
management’s on-going monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems and the work of the internal audits and independence of the
internal audit team. During its annual review, the Audit Committee
also ensure the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions, and their training programmes and budgets.
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INTERNAL CO NTROLS (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The internal audit team monitors compliance with policies and
procedures and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and highlights significant findings in respect of any
non-compliance. It plays an important role in the Group’s internal
control framework, and provides objective assurance to the Board
that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by
performing periodic checking. The internal audit team issues reports
to the Board and relevant management covering various operational
and financial processes of the Group and provides summary reports
to the Audit Committee annually together with the status of
implementation of their recommendation in Audit Committee meeting.
In addition, the internal audit team reviews the continuing connected
transactions of the Group and reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems in place covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
for the year under review and up to the date of issuance of this
Annual Report and accounts are reasonably effective and adequate.

Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors also
participate in continuous professional development programs, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company Secretary
of the Company.
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TEERRE (F)
INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued) I*,l %B E:-.{: El:é:ﬁ'i (&)
Professional Development (Continued) HEEZREmWm

The individual training record of each Director received for the year HE-_E-_ZTFE+_A=+—HILFEE &5
ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below: EMESEIZEREEER M T -

Reading materials and

Attending seminar(s)/ update relating to the
program(s)/conference(s) latest development of
relevant to the business  Listing related regulatory
or directors’ duties requirements
HEABEXBRESH MEBRELTRA
BExE#%E tHE/ RttEREERE
BERZEBER 2 BB R E
CHEN Yangbiao bR 5 1% v v
CHEN Danyun RH=E v v
CHEN Yang bR 5 v/ v
FENG Qiang S o8 X v
WANG Ruilian IR X v
WENG Weijian SEe X v
LAM Kwong Siu MEJK X v
NG Man Kung Rt X v
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda BER v/ v
All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous ‘é@ BEEYTRIZESERREZ2EE N &
professional development and are committed to participating any SEFTMEEZEN UWERLEFHREZ
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. '%tu R RE o
BOARD COMMITTEES EEeE£ZES

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its ZEFZ @D EZFE TEZE @A ITHEHEE - ﬁ%
functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the Board e TNKEZE2HEBSEH é,}%i s iTH A
committees to undertake their specific roles. The respective role, EFfF EZEFHFeE [NKZTENERER -
responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set out & &iE&EH|EFH WO T -

below:
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in 1999.
Currently, it comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda who
possesses professional accounting qualification, Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
and Mr. Ng Man Kung. Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee adopted its the terms of
reference in accordance with the Code issued by the Stock
Exchange. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. Four meetings had been held by the Audit

EEELARE (&)

BEREES

ARBAR—NMNANFRIEREZEG -RKE
Bem=-2KEBAN BEHABIUIFNTE
=2 BREXRAL(RBEEXSFMER)
MEREERIXHEE BXR LT BEX
ZEEIF -BERZECCRMEB MR
TR — R BERE BERZEEITIER
AEREHMRAAEE U BHRREF LA
MEZE - BERZEEROEFEAD BITHR

R -BRZEBEECTRHERHLAZAKE
MBER HREZEE B RFEIEFY

Committee during the year under review. Each Committee meeting N7 & KEF -
was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for
consideration, review and assessment of major issues.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the members of the Audit R -_ZE_-_FEHF+_A=+—HEE BEZZEE
Committee met fourth and their attendance is as follows: GROOAgE KELHFEBERIEOT :
Attendance
Name of member REEE H R E
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda (Chairman) BER(XE) 3
LAM Kwong Siu HEIK 4
NG Man Kung R 2
The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim and final financial HBZZEe@D=HAEEBEHZE — = 4 b Hp
results for the year 2020. The Audit Committee considers the financial R a2 FEM K EE  -BXLTE S :L 75'5, VR EH
statement to be complied with the appropriate financial standards K& &S @B @B EEZ2ZHRTEE/ELEN
and the law regulations and with sufficient disclosure has been made. WWEE o

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020. The following is a summary of work performed by
the Audit Committee during the year 2020:

(i) reviewed and discussed the annual accounts for 2019 and the
interim accounts for 2020 with the management of the
Company, with recommendations to the Board for approval;

(i) reviewed the significant audit and accounting issues arising
from the external auditor’s statutory audit of the 2019 annual
accounts and issues arising from the review of the 2020 interim
accounts;

RBE-_T-_FTF+_A=+—BLFE &
REZEEQRTTTHREZ - UTRERZES

R-ZFBZZFFFARITH TERLE

(|) Eﬁi$ _J'_qfil:tﬁu—r&n—]‘uﬁﬁ—; j-LE
FERBR-_Z_ZTFFEFHREKE - I
MEFEELES T UBE

i) WAANEZHEME -_FT-NFFER
EMECEEMEANEREZ LG
Mg MEEE_Z_T5FEHHEKE
MmEEMEE:

RBZRARLE —T=
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (F)

AUDIT COM MITTEE (Continued)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(x)

(i)

reviewed the impact of the new and revised accounting
standards on the Company;

reviewed the external auditor’s audit strategy and approach;

reviewed the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
in 2020;

met with the external auditor to discuss issues from the audits
and any other matters the external auditor might raise;

reviewed the Internal Audit objectives and approval of the
Annual Internal Audit Report;

reviewed the findings and recommendations of the Internal
Audit team on the audits carried out on the principal activities of
the Group during the year 2020;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems;
reviewed the relevant sections in the Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 concerning the

Audit Committee;

reviewed the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and
experience; and

reviewed the continuing connected transactions and their
annual caps.

The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are prepared by the
secretary of the Audit Committee with details of all matters considered
by the attendees and of decisions reached, including any concern
raised by the attendees and dissenting views expressed. The final
version of the minutes is sent to the attendees for their records. The
minutes are open for inspection by the Committee members and the
Board members.
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(i)

(v)

(vi)

(i)

(i)

(xi)

(xii)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee members are set out on page 2 of the annual report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
transparent procedures for setting remuneration policies and
packages for Directors and the senior management of the Group. Its
duties include:

o Reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration
packages of Executive and Non-executive Directors of the

Group

° Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for Directors of

EEELARE (&)

FMWEES

FHMZEeRKA=-EKEAK EERB
VHBTEZ -FTHZEENBHERAFRSE
28 -

FHMEZEECRBERNI —EEZHENE

FoABlEAREBEES RS REIERE DMK
RMTR - FHEZE SRR

s RIAKEATEIFATESTOHRHT
KU BLAEESRHEES

e RENAKEEENMENSERE

the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the members of the W_-E-_ZTF+_-_HA=+—HEEF HFMWES
Remuneration Committee met twice and their attendance is as ©@®RITMAeE KELEFBHRWOT
follows:

Attendance
Name of member RE & HERE
LAM Kwong Siu (Chairman) WEIK (L E) 2
NG Man Kung Rt 1
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda BER 1
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year WMEZE-—ZE-—T&#+-A=+—BItEE ¥
ended 31 December 2020. The following is a summary of work FEE@ BT TR IS U T2EWEEe
performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year 2020, R-Z-_FTFFRNYPTH TIEELE B8
including:
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are @}H% BEeIE2BEAE(BTER) ?f%%
not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on the )}2 SEEEAEB (;5:; EIBABE AN
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and 7 %, ﬁ EE) 2R 0 FEMEBERELEERES ;T
senior management (who are also executive directors of the (EH % KBS %AT FilEziEHE
Company), reviewing and approving the special remuneration  # & & #t 4 )Eﬁ B#iTE $ ZHEHFMNFE: I
packages of all executive directors with reference to corporate goals NE =B T rBE BEENBTEE 2 &

and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time and
determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors. The Company has adopted written
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee that clearly define
the role, authority and function of the Remuneration Committee. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
both the Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

@HHLo’“TE%ZWLAEE%%uTEH %= 8
gZAE EOLRMEZBESRE YHIRN
Bt P R X A2 UG A e

RBZRARLE —T=
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERERE ()

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme. The
emoluments of Directors are determined based on the duties and
responsibilities of each Director. The Directors’ fees were reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
considered the fees reasonable in view of the Directors’
responsibilities.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

FHMEESw

ARRLEETEMBRETS -EE2HE
BREEBERAE -FHZESRI TEEZHA
T FHNERESGERESTZHE  RAMATH
EEE-

HE—
E(B)

E_RESA A=+ HALFERGE
AEESHREEEXRENMESHIIMT :

Number of

persons

Remuneration bands & & AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7 T £ 1,000,000 7% JT 3

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 and note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee members are out on page 2 of the annual report.

[ts duties include:

— to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

— to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individual(s) nominated for directorship(s);

—  to assess the independence of INEDs;

— to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board (if any) and the
chief executive;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

—  to review the Nomination Policy and to ensure disclosure of the
same in the Corporate Governance Report, including the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship;

—  to review the Board Diversity Policy periodically and to ensure
disclosure of the same or a summary of it in the Corporate
Governance Report, including the measurable objectives that
the Committee has set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and

—  to ensure disclosure will be made in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting where the Board proposes a resolution
to elect an individual as an INED at the general meeting:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

° if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

° the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

° how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the members of the
Nomination Committee met twice and their attendance is as follows:

EEELARE (&)

REZESw

BARARER  RERNEEEARHRET
FHRE ETRRRERZEeRERE
REBEFHREAMRBNERZREF N
KR

*HM“T%%@&E%TE{W“ Ko B
RREEEAREPEEXZBRIER
E.EH \L%?fi%ﬂﬁﬁ%?ﬁkiﬁﬁftﬁ
EMBEEZAFEEZE  UREBZEE
BHEE:

REFSGHNERAGLRERAARE

ERALTABIFATEENERARR
RGBS FTHE M A0 B R i &3 A
B R R IR

e fAUPERRALHRE EBEFS
RREBEZBALTOHERALAM
MRBZEALTBBELALHNRRA

s WMRBREBIUFATEFTHHLES
TtHR(ZKALE) ETRARNES &
ZeRRZBALTDARARBE
METEFEENRA

s REBEATUREFETAWEBAHE
AR RERER R

e ZRAHEALTWAREEFEXREZTT
b -

Z_ZFEF+_A=+—HEE REHZE

BITMAEE KEHEBROT:

Attendance
Name of member RERE HERE
NG Man Kung (Chairman) RXH(EE) 1
LAM Kwong Siu HEIK 2
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda BER 1
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERERE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020. The following is a summary of work performed

by the Nomination Committee during the year 2020:

(i) reviewed the Company’s policy for nomination of Directors;

(i)  reviewed procedures for appointment of new Directors and

plans for orderly succession;

(i) reviewed the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the

Company;

(iv)  reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board of

the Company;

(v)  reviewed and recommended to the Board the nomination of the

membership of committee of the Company;

(v recommended re-election of the retiring directors at the annual

general meeting of the Company; and

(vi) assessed independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company.

REPORTING PROCEDURE

At the next meeting of the Board following a meeting/written
resolution of the Committee, copy of the minutes of the meeting/
resolutions setting out the findings, recommendations and decisions

of the Committee shall be submitted to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with
the following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations on changes
and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

° such other corporate governance duties and functions set out
in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board
are responsible.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices

to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year of 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors.

EEELARE (&)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERERE ()

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2020, the Company Secretary of the Company,
Mr. Chan Tao Ming Alex, fulfiled the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
Company Secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on governance matters, facilitates induction and,
monitors the training and continuous professional development of
Directors. He had attained not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their independence and objectivity
and had a meeting with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the
external auditors of the Company, to discuss the scope of their audit
and approve the scope.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed
as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of remuneration in respect of service and non-audit
services provided by the auditors and its common control entity
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

NEWE

RZEZZTF+_A=+—H XRRKHNAF
MEMRBRILENS ETHAIZE328%3.291K
oz Bk -{EAERNRARNEES  RRAWEW
HEEGTIIE BREEEESTTNBIESG T
BOUYEERESEHRRLER REREH
MEZGRLER FEESHBLEETES
ZEIRFEEEER -ROBEHM BES
FOR+AE NIRRT -

S BB £ 24 B

ERZESCENBHEEFAMELMERAA
BREBIMEMEBEE ZRGTE > XERAR
AN BB m gt M EHMAR A RS
TEH Awm LI EEERBE -

p
1TTE &’

HE_T-_TF+_A=+—BLEFEZHE
HHERREECHBEESFAMELMERAA
B RRABRTZRRBEFRE LEm-
ERZZERCRNEFSER NARQRAKERE
TZBRRBEFAGLRBZEMNZEHE ST
EBRMBRAR/ARRZZBED

¥ B4 BT B &=

BE_Z-_TF+_A=1T—-BIFE RH
Bib Ko B BR A R — 458 M 1) 0 ST M B 1R A0 AX B
RIGRIFZBRG 20T

HK$
BT
Audit fee % B AR 1% 700,000
Non-audit service IEZ B RS =

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 65 to 71 of
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

° is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably
practicable in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules

° conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission

° has included in its Corporate Code of Conduct a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information

o ensures, through its own internal reporting processes and the
consideration of their outcome by senior management, the
appropriate handling and dissemination of inside information.

POLICY ON THE RECOMMENDATION AND
DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

The Board may propose the payment of dividends for a financial year.
The recommendation of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board. The Board will take into account the following factors when
considering the proposal of any dividend payment:

—  the actual and expected financial performances of the Company
and each of its group member companies (collectively the
“Group”);

—  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

—  the level of the Group’s debts, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

— the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
capital expenditure plans;

— general economic conditions, internal and/or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance of the Group;
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EEERERE ()

POLICY ON THE RECOMMENDATION AND
DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND (continued)

—  relevant statutory and other regulatory restrictions; and

— any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
the Shareholders and investors. A shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
Shareholders’ communications, with the objectives of ensuring a
transparent and timely communication with Shareholders via various
means, has been established.

The Company’s Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) are valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Shareholders and to
answer questions Shareholders may raise. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings for each substantial issue, including
the re-election and election of individual Directors. The detailed
procedures of conducting a poll are explained to Shareholders at the
commencement of the AGM, to ensure that Shareholders are familiar
with such procedures.

The Company’s last AGM (“2019 AGM”) was held on 27 May 2020 at
Ballroom, 1st Floor, South Pacific Hotel, 23 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the resolutions proposed at that meeting
were approved by shareholders of the Company by poll. Details of
the poll results are available on the Company’s website at
www.fujianholdings.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND |NVESTORS (Continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the 2019 AGM is set out
below:

EEELARE (&)

HRAEBREENEBE@m

EER_T-NEFERRBERGTHEHIIN
™

AGM
Directors = BREFASE
CHEN Yangbiao bR 15 12 X
CHEN Danyun BRI E v
CHEN Yang [ 35 v
FENG Qiang 508 X
WANG Ruilian F I bR x
WENG Weijian SEE v
LAM Kwong Siu MEJK v
NG Wan Kung R H v
LIU Mei Ling Rhoda BE% v

A key element of effective communication with shareholders and
investors is the prompt and timely dissemination of information in
relation to the Group. The Company commits to report to the
Shareholders of the Company the Group’s corporate information in a
timely and punctual way through notifying or mailing to all
shareholders via press release, Interim Report and Annual Report.
The circular of the AGM will be distributed to all Shareholders at least
21 days prior to the meeting, which set out the requirements and the
procedure of the vote and the relevant details of other proposed
resolutions. The printed copies of the Group’s annual report and
interim report will be dispatched to all the shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing Shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s articles of association during
the year ended 31 December 2020. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of amended and restated Articles of Association of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings may request
the Directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).
The request(s) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request(s) may consist of several documents in like form and may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form which
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

In accordance with sections 567 and 568 of the Companies
Ordinance, if the Directors do not within 21 days after the date on
which they are subject to the requirement under section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance to convene an EGM for a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the EGM is
given, the Shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same

manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Fujian Holdings Limited

Room 3306-3308, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central

Email: info@fujianholdings.com

Tel. No.: +852 2810 9222

Fax No.: +852 2868 9930

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the board of Directors and/or relevant Board Committees
of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’
questions.

Proposing a resolution at an annual general
meeting

Shareholder(s) may request the Company to give, to all Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of AGM, notice of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting
pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if they:

(@ represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(b)  are not less than 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request(s):

(@  may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic
form;

(b)  must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c)  must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and
(d)  must be received by the Company not later than six weeks

before the AGM to which the request(s) relate; or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting.
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PROPOSING A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR AT AGM

Pursuant to article 105 of the articles of association of the Company,
if a Shareholder intends to nominate a person other than the retiring
Directors for Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit the
following documents to the Company’s registered office during the
period commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
such meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such general meeting, and the length of the notice
period shall be at least seven days:

(@ a written notice of such proposal for the attention of the
Company Secretary, signed by the shareholder who is qualified
to attend and vote at the general meeting;

(b)  biographical details of the candidate as set out in Rule 13.51(2)(a)
to (x) of the Listing Rules; and

(c) a written consent signed by the candidate indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar: Tricor Standard
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Other enquiries or comments raised by any Shareholder can be
mailed to the Board at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at
Room 3306-08, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or sent through email to
info@fujianholdings.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management believes that risk management is an
essential component of the Group’s administrative structure. The
management assists the Board in evaluating material risk exposure
existing in the Group’s business, including investment risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and participates in designing and
formulating appropriate risk management and internal control
measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily operational
management.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The management considers that the investment risk management
measures provide guarantee to the Group through its way of seeking
new development opportunities, as to secure reasonable return in
every investment, to reduce investment risks and to avoid possible
loss attributable to investments.

The Group’s risk management towards liquidity aims to ensure that
under all circumstances there exists sufficient capital to fulfill
repayment obligations of all debts due, to maintain good
creditworthiness, to finance reasonable investment opportunities and
to fuel business development. The Group’s accounting department is
responsible for daily financial activities and monitoring liquidity position
from time to time to cope with business operation of the Company.

The Board had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems once during
the year ended 31 December 2020 which covered financial,
operational, compliance procedural and risk management functions
and had considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. In light of the size and
scale of the Group’s businesses, the Board is also delegated with the
responsibilities for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. As such, the Group currently does not have an
internal audit team. The Board will review and consider to establish
such department as and when it thinks necessary.

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and
for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has therefore
made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate governance. It
has established a highly effective system of internal controls and
adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and effectiveness.
As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets and protect the
interests of its shareholders.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and risk
management are effective and there are no irregularities,
improprieties, frauds or other deficiencies that suggest material
deficiency in the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
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CORPORATE MONITOR

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s overall corporate
reporting process and control system, while the corporate reporting
standard is handled by the accounting department, which makes
regular review of resources allocation and financial reporting system
properly. Compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Listing Rules, SFO and other applicable laws and regulations are
handled by the Company Secretary. The Company’s management
meets with the Executive Directors regularly to review and brief the
reporting system, and the Audit Committee annually to review and
brief the reporting system.

A package of detailed materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors of the Company is provided to each
newly appointed Director of the Company, in which it is especially
specified the applicable rules and regulations (including the Listing
Rules) that the first time appointed Directors of the Company shall
notice and understand.

In respect of the securities transactions made by Directors and
relevant employees, the Company has adopted Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, the Model Code, as its own Code of conduct regarding
the standard for securities transactions. Printed copies of the Model
Code have been distributed to each Director and relevant employees
of the Group as stipulated therein. Having made specific enquires of
all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the standards set out therein.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-

sensitive information about the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Yangbiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE MEMBERS OF
FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 174, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTHEHENEELTR

Carrying amount of hotel property included in property, plant and equipment and leasehold land included in right-

of-use assets under hotel operation segment
Refer to Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
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We identified the carrying amounts of hotel property included in property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land included in right-of-use assets
under hotel operation segment as a key audit matter due to the
management’s judgements associated with review of the recoverable
amounts of assets.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a hotel property included in
property, plant and equipment and leasehold land included in right-of-
use assets under hotel operation segment with a carrying amounts of
HK$12,041,227 and HK$9,213,860 respectively.

Significant management judgement is required to determining the
recoverable amounts based on a value in use calculation and a
discount rate of 6.75% per annum.
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Our procedures in relation to carrying amounts of
hotel property included in property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land included in right-of-
use assets under hotel operation segment included:

— Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by
the management and the valuation specialist
engaged by us;

— Assessing the methodologies used by the
external valuer engaged by the management to
estimate the value in use calculation;

— Evaluating the appropriateness of information
and estimation used in the financial forecasts
provided by the management;

— Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to
assess the methodologies and key assumptions
adopted in the valuation for estimating the value
in use; and

— Checking the accuracy and relevance of the
input data provided by management for the
estimation of the value in use.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTHPEENEELTR

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
REY XTI
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the management’s judgement associated with
determining the fair value.

The Group has various investment properties in Hong Kong. Such
investment properties are measured at fair value and the aggregate
carrying amount of these investment properties was HK$233,800,000
as at 31 December 2020.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by management to
determine the fair values of the investment properties. To support
management’s determination of the fair value, the Group engaged an
external valuer to perform valuations on these assets at the end of the
reporting period.
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of
investment properties included:

— Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by
the management and the valuation specialist
engaged by us;

— Obtaining understanding of the approach and
valuation methodology adopted;

— Assessing whether the investment properties
were valued on a consistence basis;

— Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to
assess the methodologies and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

— Checking the accuracy of the fair value
calculation prepared by the external valuer; and

— Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B ZBERE (&)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5769

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
GeBEmakHME2E KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

2020 2019
—E_BF —ZE—hF
Revenue &= 25,689,212 42,004,603
Other income Haug A 362,711 358,199
Other gains and losses HkhEzRER (873,011) 5,823,686
Employee benefits expense BEIRANZY (12,175,178) (16,238,550)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BRERRERE
equipment (3,913,391) (4,224,056)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAEEERE (3,255,582) (3,025,324)
Finance costs [ 2N (68,986) (87,227)
Share of profit of associates EhEE AT ZBF 9,682,484 3,315,217
Other operating expenses Hugeg R (14,839,978) (17,707,280)
Profit before tax MR AT & F 1,108,281 10,219,268
Income tax credit/(expense) EBESR (XH) 919,088 (757,246)
Profit for the year attributable to owners ZNEEZ R D ER XA T
of the Company BEA 2,027,369 9,462,022
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hft 2 E Uz (B X)
attributable to owners of the Company 2 BRAEXATEFE A
Item that may be reclassified subsequently (&8 Al E S 2 18752
to profit or loss: EE -
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINEBEEZ
foreign operations PEH ZRE 9,722,678 (2,720,951)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 7~ & H b 2 H Uk 25
for the year attributable to owners of (AX)DERAEQTE
the Company, net of income tax BEAHKRFEH 9,722,678 (2,720,951)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7~ & & 2 [ Uk # 5 it A &<
attributable to owners of the Company A R#EHA A 11,750,047 6,741,071
Earnings per share FRER
Basic (HK cents per share) HEAR(EREMWN 0.18 0.83
Diluted (HK cents per share) BE(EREMWN 0.18 0.83
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R E B S AR R 3R

At 31 December 2020 (n HK Dollars) R —ZE - HF+ - A =+—H (ABTIIR)

Notes 2020 2019
B 5 —EEH —E-NF

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 16 18,910,518 21,836,468

Right-of-use assets FTRBEEE 17 10,825,708 14,081,290

Investment properties "EWME 18 PREEOOOOOE 235 300,000

Interest in associates KB & NF 2w 20 115,860,756 99,244,445

Deferred tax assets ELEFIEE E 26 1,886,819 1,886,819

381,283,801 372,349,022

Current assets REBEE

Inventories e 21 283,736 332,289

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H U BR 51 22 2,238,786 1,653,809

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 23 55,701,628 55,966,829

58,224,150 57,952,927

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables 25 MEMEMNIRR 24 12,585,578 12,120,533

Lease liabilities HEBE 25 1,414,614 1,374,614

Tax payable FE R IE = 655,792

14,000,192 14,150,939

Net current assets REEEEE 44,223,958 43,801,988
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR CRINI A 416,151,010
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7R A Bl 45 A JE(L %

Share capital A& 7 27 898,839,029 898,839,029

Reserves & (CViNRIMIN (487,685,222)
Total equity BRARE S A CPPXRRCLVN 411,153,807
Non-current liabilities kRBEME

Lease liabilities HEaE 25 239,739 1,654,353

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRBEEE 26 2,364,166 3,342,850

2,603,905 4,997,203
425,507,759 416,151,010
The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 174 were ZZEe@R_-_ZT-—E€=A=1+HE#ELEZET

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 23 NEE VR APMERERPET2EE 1748 ¢

March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Chen Yangbiao Chen Danyun
misE AR
Director Director

BF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A 2 4=
I A = | *E m ﬁ @J i'%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATEEAERL
Share Translation ~ Accumulated
capital reserve losses Total
[ RERE Rt B8 &5t
(Note 27)
(P £ 27)
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&-HA—-H 898,839,029 (8,940,191) (485,486,102 404,412,736
Profit for the year REZRM - - 9,462,022 9,462,022
Other comprehensive expense for the year ~ RNEFHM2EBE X - (2,720,951) - (2,720,951)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income AEE2E AR,/ WHEE
for the year — (2,720,951) 9,462,022 6,741,071
Balance at 31 December 2019 and R-ZE-HAE+-A=+-HEK
at 1 January 2020 —E-EF5-H—H 898,839,029 (11,661,142) (476,024,080) 411,153,807
Profit for the year KEE AT - 2,027,369 2,027,369
Other comprehensive income for the year ANEEEMEPERZE 9,722,678 - 9,722,678
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEENELE 9,722,678 2,027,369 11,750,047
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-FBE+-A=+-8 898,839,029 (1,938,464) (473,996,711) 422,903,854
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SGEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Income tax (credit)/expense

Bank interest income

Share of profit of associates

Finance costs

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Net decrease/(increase) in fair value of
investment properties

Gain arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loss allowance

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

REERCBEERE
KEFEEF 2,027,369
FEIEEF -

PRSH (E®)/ X
RITH B WA

(919,088)
(123,381)

JEEB & AR Z BT (9,682,484)
B 75 AR AR 68,986
FRAEEENE 3,255,582
ME - BERIBEZITE
3,913,391
WEMENRET
(3 an) 1,500,000

ELXASREE(BBUEFRZ
DNAERE 2 W (GRB

B R AR E) (1,121,914)
VERIERE 52,384
HENE  BELEEZ

FEEER 32,397

(996,758)

Movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and

other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

LEESEPI2KLERS

Cash (used in)/from operating activities
Income tax paid
Interest received

FERL/(EM) 48,553
B 5 I E i B AR 3K

(38 1), A (655,673)

B 5 & H b FE AT AR FIE N 465,045

KBRS (ZH),/ RA (1,138,833)

BEXNHMER (715,388)

2 HWF E 1,263,607

Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities

REXBRES (XH)/ RABHE

(590,614)

REERERAT

2019

—E-NF

9,462,022

757,246
(190,338)
(3,315,217)
87,227
3,025,324
4,224,056

(5,000,000)

(1,017,982)

32,256

8,064,594

(59,218)

103,318
1,014,694

9,123,388
(1,839,582)
1,190,008

8,473,814

.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERETRERX (HE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

2019
—E-hnF
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZHERE
Payments for purchase of property, plant BEME WELKE
and equipment (632,235) (216,949)
Net cash used in investing activities REEXEB2HSTHESE (632,235) (216,949
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBZ2RHERE
Repayments of lease liabilities HEABER (1,443,600) (1,203,000)
Net cash used in financing activities HREBK RS HFEE (1,443,600) (1,208,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRESZEORD) EMFHE
and cash equivalents (2,666,449) 7,053,865
Cash and cash equivalents FUzHEeRREEE
at the beginning of year 55,966,829 49,541,745
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R & &) v 5/ 4 2,401,248 (628,781)
Cash and cash equivalents FHCEERBESEHE
at the end of year, representing BN & RIBITHER
cash and bank balances 55,701,628 55,966,829
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &,

GENERAL

Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Hong Kong as a public limited company and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is HC Technology
Capital Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding company is Fujian
Tourism Development Group Company Limited (‘FTDC”), a
state-owned corporation in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is Room 3306-08, 33/F, West
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are investment holding,
property investment in Hong Kong and hotel operations in the
PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & Z= —

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS — Phase 2°

4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fuffiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20207

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

[E T SR R

Except for new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities

as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,

the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the

liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, the application of the amendments will not result in

reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain investment properties
and financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

T

S

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in associates is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
Changes in net assets of the associates other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of associates
exceeds the Group’s interest in associates (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in associates), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

An investment in associates is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in associates, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in associates may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
associates, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associates and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associates, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associates is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the associates on the
same basis as would be required if the associates had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by the associates would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with the associates of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associates are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associates that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue from other source

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
lease terms, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises, where premiums received to
terminate leases are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when they arise.

Revenue from hotel operations

Accommodation income is recognised in the period in which
such services are rendered because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Catering and other income is recognised when the goods or
services is transferred or rendered to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combination, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premise that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease in not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to
be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by
the Group.

The Group as a buyer — lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements of
HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group as
a buy-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises a loan receivable equal to the transfer proceeds
within the scope of HKFRS 9.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. Government grants
relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from the
related expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payments reserve. For shares/share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to equity. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share-based payments reserve/will be transferred to
retained profits/other reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Shares/share options granted to parties other than
employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses unless the goods of services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

100 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

3.

FEETHXRmw

B (@)

ELERABBEREANBRRA A LR H
ZEREMEBZERREE Z8 T AMR®
R ERA KRB ARG EHEOD R ERE A
BE N Al R AS B O AIER S - H B A BE
RERBaBBEZANBREREZRME
EZBEERBEEERAEKEELERHE
RRBANADRERZERN L AHA
A B] 56 2R ) s SR

ELERAEECKREEREREHER
fEm s - I A BE & & 59 I8 ;R 7% & A IR 1B
2K EB 0 B EEE R F AR -

EIEBE A A R B AR 1
BEBHBHZERRENE  BEAE
EHKRCEMAEHE LEBH2HE
(RBE) 3T H -

BREFMSHRABNEE 2 ERRE R
& I R 7K 5% [ 78 2 A 2R AR Uk B 3 2
FHEEMBERESRIVNBGEE -

A ERBAAEEAHAEZREYE
METHBRAEBAREMEHEE "
ZEMENEAEREERTEABH
B E - BRIFLL AR R AR LB TR
B - EREVERAUMERKEMEFE
BHEREmMEFERBEFEEAFE M
ZEFEREAE - REEABRERED
EABAEHEEN = - IARR S HK
[B] o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In accessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the
Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be used by individual group entities in their income
tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each
uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely amount or
the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including hotel property held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Hotel property is interests in buildings and their integral fixed
plant which are collectively used in the operations of the hotel,
and are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and
impairment losses. The related repairs and maintenance
attributable to hotel properties are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period which they are incurred. The costs of significant
improvements are capitalised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of the hotel property over the
remaining lease terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the reducing
balance method at a principal annual rate of 20%. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets by the Group under
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair values,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset
is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies
the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

In addition, the Group assess whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwiill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

106 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

3.

ZE-TFEF A=+ —HIEFE (REBTIR)

FEETHXRmw

EWMIA
EEEMERRAZRARGERN —F

™

FOeREEMNSRAEBERER - —1)
CENEREENEETN RERED
BHRENHRAXNEE

TRHEENMSREEBERYVIRZR AR BER

ERBEFPANELENERE SRR
MEBSREEEMBHREERFEISH

NEFHEN - EEABEARBEXETE
REENERABARAEBFEAHESE
Pt AZTHBEENEREEXETRAE
BRINMXZXHER £V REREBISTE
MEREMEEXERAEBENRIAESP
R -

ERMEEEFE—HeREELETH

féﬁﬁﬁ%%’ﬁfa$ﬂ"@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ

?aﬂq%EaJrffinﬁfi\H&)\ﬂﬁm(@%Eﬁi
BB NBEXRERNE 5EH[ME
EEXMHNMEERMEE) BES
MEEXEZRAEBENTRYSH  HEFE
BT B AR RIRR A - B2 1) 4A B R B O %
FHEBRT2IENNEK-

RAKELFRLEBETER
ABIERBATIR -

GORAIPSNE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#RE B S IR R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE€HE%E @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T A

Financial assets TREE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial CREETEREBEREGE

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are e TNHIEHRN L R A ER B IRE K

subsequently measured at amortised cost: AETE

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose o CREEE BEBEAARNEZSE -
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and EEMRKESREESRE : &

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash o SEREREETEHELARE £ R
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 2 MEINASFMKRELREHF
the principal amount outstanding. B oo

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are BETHIEENESREEERBIRANLE
subsequently measured at fair value through other AEHMEERE(RARBEFEEM
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"): meEWER]) :

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose o SRHEEUNEKEAFTE EBEZ
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting = RBANNAEREESEANBERE
contractual cash flows; and B I

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash o ,’] R EEEBBEELER SR
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on ZBReREREARAEBEATE
the principal amount outstanding. El’\J e MF B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measure at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, and cash and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL when uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
from initial recognition. To measure the ECL, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

For all other financial assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

110 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

3.

ZE-TFEF A=+ —HIEFE (REBTIR)

FEETHXRmw

@I A m

ERLEE @)

THEERE
AEEMAIERBEE SV BREERFQ
RBEBIREMERZE e ki
TEB)RETENSREERRELE
EEENBEEEG BEREERANeE
EEERSEHEY  URBENEER
BIEARBE L -

PHEHCEEBERREERBEIAN
BHEGTANMARIENENESHESE
WIEHEEBX - HEZT 128K
HEERX(12EREHEEBE) R
RIEHBHREHEZI12@ A AT gE A&
MEANEHBHNZHEHEEEEDS
Do FHEREREBEASENELEHIBAKL
BRETH TREEBEABENEE —
A EAR L A R 3R & B 8 ATk R &9
AU RERRAAR RO TEREITTHE -

AEBERBEBVBHRELEFIRAL

AR ERHIGEERE  EVLRAMEE
SREFEERARGEREEEER &
AEEREEER BHREFRERE

tRAEERREHEAHBEHEOE -

IAMBEREMMEMEEMS A5 EKRMA
ERR2EABMEEERNSRTER
BEG BREEERRA NHABEARUR
BE LT W$EIE EHEHEER
BiE - ThHREREREHRACGES
BIOREBANGERARELEEZENNA
Rt ERELSRE LT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and i) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

FESTBER @

R IARm

EREE @)

ERHEEZ@HEE
¥—ERSEENEHEZLREED
HERRB L HREBEATHEER ¢/
BENAERARME - eREEGEEAR
EHEEOEABUTEHNTERE
®

(@) BEITAXERANEATBRE
b) ZE# FIIEHIBHEN

© BRAMERA HREHEXRER
FR SERXRANMBRESRD
ERERARTFERATERITE
B R X

(o) fEFRATRA]BE & A AR A 3k H B
BEMH -

At #5 B R
EEEARARGEFRERABRENY B
REARERENEHASHEAEES
HAHZEMEE  AHNESREER D
AXRBNAEBERERF THHEEDH
FE VTHEBEENBRATEREEEZR -
AHEEAREERF M - EARER K
BEBEPHER -

msEreRAm —2—=&5 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:
° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit rating where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is

credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(@ has controls or joint control over the Group;
(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (continued)

(i) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(@ the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

()  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(@ a person identified in ()@ has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(h)  the entity or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close member of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to inference, or be inference
by, that person in their dealing with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions and underlying
assumptions adopted for capitalisation of the income derived
from the existing tenancies with due provision for the
reversionary income potential of the property interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses
group based on shared credit risks characteristics and the days
past due to calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The loss
allowances are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (4)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of and individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets, property, plant and equipment, are HK$10,825,708 and
HK$18,910,518 (2019: HK$14,081,290 and HK$21,836,468)
in respect of right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment
that have been recognised respectively. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
assets are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#RE B S IR R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

5. REVENUE 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WM DTmT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF

Revenue from other sources = ES 3PN
— Gross rental income — HHEKA 6,996,370 7,162,074

Revenue from contracts with customers & = 4 R g A
— Hotel operations —BIEEB WS 18,692,842 34,842,529
25,689,212 42,004,603

() Disaggregated of revenue from

contracts with customers

() REEFSEKNBADH

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
Types of goods or services & ¥ =k BR % 59 3 Bl
Accommodation income EEHEHEBRA 9,482,123 21,152,241
Catering and other income 23 TN NN 9,210,719 13,690,288
18,692,842 34,842,529
Geographical markets i EE 5 TS
Mainland China A B A 1B 18,692,842 34,842,529
Timing of revenue recognition PN S
A point in time 7 — 1 B RS 26 9,210,719 13,690,288
Over time B — ER B 9,482,123 21,152,241
18,692,842 34,842,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations

For hotel operations, the performance obligation is
satisfied when services are rendered.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 are all expected to
be recognised within one year.

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

Property investment — the rental of investment properties

Hotel operations — the operation of hotel
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

6. D EER @

DTEHBREEEE
REEBAERD BB D2 W REE

by reportable and operating segments: ST :
Property investment Hotel operations Total
MERE B IR B ¥
2020 2020 2019
2% g et 3:3 - et 2l —TNF
REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUE  HRD 2815 2 &
Revenue from external customers REMBRE W= 6,996,370 7,162,074 18,692,842 34,842,529 25,689,212 42,004,603
REPORTABLE SEGMENT RESULT ~ B 5 B85 2 ¥&
Segment result before other gains and & 5T E 4 Ue 25 K 5 18
losses: LRI E S 6,924,222 7,015,099 (4,694,729) 4,220,440 2,229,493 11,235,539
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of R EWEM A 4 BEF
investment properties (R /% (1,500,000) 5,000,000 - (1,500,000) 5,000,000
Segment result DEEE 5,424,222 12,015,099 (4,694,729) 4,220,440 729,493 16,235,539
Unallocated income RED WA 231,001 11,194
Finance costs B SR A (68,986) (87,227)
Corporate administration costs CETHAAE (CHELNAR  (0,255,455)
Share of profit of associates iy =N | 9,682,484 3,315,217
Profit before tax % i B 2 F 1,108,281 10,219,268
Income tax credit/(expense) FEfEe,/ (L) 919,088 (757,246)
Profit for the year KEERF - 2,027,369 IR

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
the current year (2019: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of bank interest income and other unallocated income/(expense),
finance costs, corporate administration costs including
directors’ remuneration, share of profit of associates and
income tax expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

Property investment

MERE

ASSETS

Segment assets DEEE 247,368,512
Interest in associates i A WNEI
Unallocated corporate assets KBS DNREE

Consolidated total assets

3F
o
B
piiYs
o

LIABILITIES =R

Segment liabilities DEEE (PHEARNE  (2,770,566)
Unallocated corporate liabilities S S NCIN=NE

Consolidated total liabilities FREAE

All assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interest in associates, deferred tax assets and certain cash and
bank balances.

All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain balances of current liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

Other segment information

Property investment

MERE

Hip 5 B &R

Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE

Depreciation of property, plantand )% - BE L& E 2 T E
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets & & &E 2 T &

Other segment information
33,362

21,135
1,381,575

Net decrease/(increase) in fair REMENAABES

value of investment properties /() 1,500,000 (5,000,000)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWNE BEEREZ

plant and equipment EEER 18,402 7,066
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57,100

34,281
1,161,317

7 EE R @

THEERARE
AEBRTREREBIBUHI 2EE
REEAFWT -

Hotel operations

BIERK

2019
—E-NF

74,732,529 IENECREUNKUN 320,086,357
115,860,756
3,560,838

(9,178,162)

326,123,242
99,244,445
4,934,262

430,301,949

(8,986,337) (11,757,728)

(4,846,369)

BRRLR S RIRTTHEER  RBE QA 2%
s MEEREEE MEEEHE YRR

EEHH -

(11,048,728)
(7,199,414)

(19,148,142)

BELRDEELESRECHEAE
S FEREHESREETRHEDH -
Hib 7 BEH

Hotel operations

BIEES

Total
FoX

598,873 159,849

632,235 216,949

3,892,256 4,189,775 3,913,391 4,224,056
1,874,007 1,874,007 3,255,582 3,025,324
1,500,000 (5,000,000)

32,397 32,256



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other than
deferred tax assets is presented based on the geographical
location of assets are detailed below:

7 EE R @

ih & & ®
AEMLEBELRMEALISHE RS
—hE N E S -

BREENE AEERANBER 2 W
EREBZMEMES D FRBEEEM
FROEERBEEINFBOT

Revenue from
external customers

RENBEF W
2020

Non-current assets
FRBEE
2020

—RoF pmiaEl —F-—FF
Mainland China o B A 4 (CESPRZPN 34,842,500 IRERRENKIRE 132,057,790
Hong Kong B GELTRy (7,162,074 QPRIEQIRN 238,404,413

Information about major customers

No external customers of the Group contributed over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

7. OTHER INCOME 7.

25,689,212 Nel0ZXsiochN 379,396,982

370,462,203

FRETEEFHNESR

AEEBR_ZE_TFR_ZT—NEFEL
RENBEFEAEBITLARZEBRE
10% 2 B Uk -

H A

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Bank interest income AT A B A 123,381 190,338
Government grants (Note) BT E B (5F) 81,000 —
Others HAib 158,330 167,861
362,711 358,199

Note: i

During the current year, the Group recognised government grants in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies, which relates to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government for compensating the Group’s staff
costs.

FEARFE - & R A BT B KA BE 3B i K i = Bl -
ZEMS KRB BT HAORMEIRE - A
BZEENTHEABER-
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R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HttWuEKEE

2020
—g-%f

Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of

investment properties

Gain arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)

KREMENRABEFORD),

Bhn

EEERREE(BBEER)
DA ERE 2 W3
(RBERUARKRALE)

FONE W (BB

(1,500,000)

1,121,914
5,075

(373,011)

9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

9. HtEKELEH

2020
—g-%%F

—_—=

Auditor’s remuneration

Business taxes and other charges

Bank charges
Hotel operations

Legal and professional fee

Listing cost
Management fee

Other operating expenses

Rent and rate
Sundry expenses
Utilities expenses

% 2560 B &
BEN S KK
MBER
IR E
AERBXREHN
EmARAR
EIEEM
Hi2EEMA
e K=

H 32
INGES Sy

700,000
874,347
81,691
4,156,982
396,548
308,145
172,716
6,787,132
175,041
369,041
818,335

14,839,978

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. B 7 Bk A<

Interest on lease liabilities

HEREHNE
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2019
—E-NF

5,000,000

1,017,982
(194,296)

5,823,686

2019
—E—-NF

680,000
814,055
76,653
6,118,787
369,462
305,911
172,166
7,167,549
462,715
340,966
1,199,016

17,707,280

2019
—E-NF

87,227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

11. INCOME TAX

11. A8 H

2019
—E-NF

Current tax: BVEATR IR -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FREMEMSH

Under/(over) provision in prior years

EENLE/BR) BB

1,804,859
(307,344)

Deferred tax credit (note 26)

IEFE K % (7£26)

59,596 1,497,515
(978,684) (740,269)

Total income tax (credit)/expense
recognised in profit or loss

(ER)/ 3

AEENBEREDBOAE

(919,088)

757,246

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group
entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company and its Hong
Kong subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits for the
year (2019: Nil).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

RZE—NE=A=-+—H FHEI e
BB T —EFRBUSE) (B75) K6
B([GpER] - HE3| ARSI FIEH
REE - RPIERR_ZE—N\F=ZA=_+
NEBEEXRAZZIRBEAEER R
EMAHHMERELSE  2EKEBKE
MBE28 &5 o H B i#§ 1%8.25% K Bt & &4
TR miBiE2E 878 W F E 5 1%16.5%
BB R o DA RS F S5 =X
EMEMBEBEBKEMNFEGEER
16.5% Y £t — B R & o

RAit - AEREEKRERFTEN SR MG
AAEANANENE2EEBE LA E W
& 558.25%  MERFHABRZ2E &8
TTAEMEFEFRMNEAE HER
16.5% °

R AR B A R 2 AR T S 18 8
BEERTE AN - REFEH B AR L E
et RV AN WA |G AW HREK
ARBRBNEHARRB( T -NF:
&) -

BRREARALNMBOCERSR AL
FIERED) ROCEMBRAZE AR - &
EARLMBCEAEHEBEER25% (=
T—NF :25%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. Fﬁ' *?%E‘ﬁ (#&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to profit before RAEEMNHRBEIHEESER LA M
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other PEWRRAENGTEAIB RN ESERANT ¢

comprehensive income as follows:

2020 —EBEHF
Hong Kong PRC % Total
BH # Bt k]
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAIAF (BB) 6,075,131 (4,966,850 1,108,281
Tax at applicable tax rates REBPEFERR 1,002,396 (1,241,713) (239,317)
Tax effect of expenses not AAHIHIERE 2
deductible for tax purpose B 510,453 384,439 894,892
Tax effect of income not BEARBEREZ
taxable for tax purpose Mg e (1,611,805) (1,593,922) (3,205,727)
Tax effect of temporary difference AERZBETE
not recognised ZEMBTE (31,145) 1,080,768 1,049,623
Under-provision of prior years EERN DB - 59,596 59,596
Tax effect of tax loss AERBBEEZ
not recognised RExe2 130,101 391,744 521,845
Income tax credit for the year FRABBEESR (919,088) (919,088)
2019 —E-NF
Hong Kong % PRC % Total
B8 Bk H ERl B
Profit before tax % 5 B 2 A 6,308,277 3,910,991 10,219,268
Tax at applicable tax rates RERAMERAER T 1,040,866  16.50 977,748  25.00 2,018,614
Tax effect of expenses not TAHTIEE 2
deductible for tax purpose Wy E 330,398 622,353 952,751
Tax effect of income not BARVEBERZ
taxable for tax purpose Ry E (1,432,975) (1,616,279 (3,049,254)
Tax effect of temporary difference RERZHEERE
not recognised EZANBYE (31,536) 1,080,768 1,049,232
Over-provision of prior years EERBERE — (307,344) (307,344)
Tax effect of tax loss AERVBEERZ
not recognised Ry E 93,247 - 93,247
Income tax expense for the year FRABRBEIH — 757,246 757,246
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. KRFEBF

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after (crediting)/charging:

Gross rental income from investment
properties
Less: direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties that
generated rental income during
the year

FEEBRNE GTA) /MK

BREMFHS WAL

B REFEREBEMEREE
HeWAMELEERLS
£

Employee benefits expense (including
directors’ remunerations):
Salaries and other benefits in kind
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

BTHRAMXH(BRESHE)

e MEMmE YR
RREH EIHR

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEEZIE

Depreciation of hotel property HIEMEZIE

Depreciation of other property, plantand H % ME R &EHE 2T E
equipment

Total depreciation wITE

Auditors’ remuneration 23 Gl kA

2019

—E-NF

(6,996,370) (7,162,074)
86,394 146,976
(6,909,976) (7,015,098)
11,865,605 15,481,327
309,573 757,223
12,175,178 16,238,550
3,255,582 3,025,324
2,449,064 2,449,064
1,464,327 1,774,992
7,168,973 7,249,380
700,000 680,000

EmsEreRAT —2—=&5 129
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R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

13.EERFETRAEHMH

AEREITETBRABRESR RELTR
BIRARIEBIHENT :

BE_T-_2F+_-"A=+—H

Salaries and  Contributions
other benefits to retirement Total
Name of Directors in kind benefit scheme emoluments
FekHA
EERE BEVzERN BASEMHER FEE )
(A) Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Yangbiao R 15 12 780,000 780,000
Ms. Chen Danyun R =
(Chief Exectitive) (1TB#B#) 650,000 650,000
Mr. Chen Yang FR 5 585,000 585,000
Sub-total NE 2,015,000 2,015,000

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

MERTESFHEZZERBMABAR
AR AEEEH 2 EBITHRY

Salaries and  Contributions
other benefits to retirement Total
Name of Directors Fees in kind benefit scheme emoluments
FekHA
EEHE e BYZEHN BRcHEIMK 4T
(B) Non-Executive Directors E#1TE S
Mr. Feng Qiang 5 58
Mr. Wang Ruilian FislE
Ms. Weng Weijian B
Sub-total NEF

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EER T ETHAEHFM @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bz—Z2-_Z2F+=-H=+—H

Salaries and  Contributions

other benefits to retirement Total
Name of Directors in kind benefit scheme emoluments
FeRHEAM
EEMR BYzERN BASEMHER # T
(C) Independent Non- BAFHTES
executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu ME JK 120,000 120,000
Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda Bx1% 120,000 120,000
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rk 120,000 120,000
Sub-total N 360,000 360,000
The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown NEBYERNTEESTMETEEALRD
above were mainly for their services as director of the Company. RIEEMMEH ZRE -
Total @5t 360,000 2,015,000 2,375,000
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_T-NAF+-A=+—H
Salaries and Contributions to
other benefits retirement Total
Name of Directors Fees inkind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e kEAM
EEUA we EVMoEN RIRETEMHK AR5t % B
(A) Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Yangbiao [ 5 1= - 780,000 - 780,000
Ms. Chen Danyun R FE
(Chief Execuitive) (FTTE A2 %) — 650,000 - 650,000
Mr. Chen Yang BR 15 — 585,000 — 585,000
Sub-total Nt — 2,015,000 — 2,015,000
The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly U ETESHFMEIBEAMMHEEARAD
for their services with the management of the affairs of the FIRANEBELY  EBITRRE -
Company and the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLU M ENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

13.EERFETHAETFHN @

BE_T-NAFt+t-_A=1+—H

Salaries and  Contributions to

other benefits retirement Total

Name of Directors Fees in kind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e kHEAM

EEUA we EBEWzEN RIRFEIMK 42 51 % o
(B) Non-Executive Directors JE#1{T & =
Mr. Feng Qiang 5 o8 — — — —
Mr. Wang Ruilian Fighkk — — _ _
Ms. Weng Weijian R EipEs - - - -
Sub-total /N — — — —

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its

subsidiaries.

NEFRTEEZFMEIBER/ARA K
HEARMESMIEL 2R -

Salaries and  Contributions to

other benefits retirement Total
Name of Directors Fees in kind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e REAM
BEEMA we EBEWzRM R EIMK # 5t = B
(C) Independent Non- BYFHITES
executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEJK 120,000 — - 120,000
Mr. Leung Hok Lim (note (i) 2 £ & (5£() — — - -
Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda Bx%
(note (ii) (FE (i) 120,000 — - 120,000
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt 120,000 — — 120,000
Sub-total NEF 360,000 — — 360,000

The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as director of the Company.

NEBIFRATETFMEIZERLR
BIEEMEL 2R -

Total 1=t

360,000

2,015,000 — 2,375,000
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) & Z= —

e R R M (F)
P-BPET-AST—BIFE CUETIR)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. EERFETHAETH M@
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—hFt+=-A=+—8H
Notes: i
0] Mr. Leung Hok Lim resigned on 1 January 2019 0 REBRTER_T—NEF—A—B&HE
(ii) Ms. Liu Mei Ling Rhoda is appointed on 1 January 2019 (ii) BERZITR=-_ZT—NF—A—BLAE
There was no arrangement under which the Director or the ARNAEEHETBITHRAEREBELHESR
Chief Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration Rk [RZ 2R IS o
during the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Director HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE
has been granted share options, in respect of their services to HiR  AEEMEREERET I AER
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company (2019: BYNFRESHAEERE M (=
Nil). Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 33 to T—NF:E) - BEAEBRETE ZFEMA
the consolidated financial statements. BN ARG B 75 R R BT 5283 ©
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEBM S
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the ELEZERaHFREER ZR(ZE— N
Group, three (2019: four) were Directors and the Chief TR AEEERITHAR  BE 2
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are included in TEFAMFEISCESHME AN HEfZ
the disclosure in note 13 above. The emoluments of the Z(ZE—NF: —RZ)ALTZHBOT :
remaining two (2019: one) individual was as follows:
2020 2019
—EC-BF —E-hF
Salaries and other benefits in kind HehEMEYZEF 898,144 564,214
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 3R (K & 2| 4 5% 32,523 18,000
930,667 582,214

The emolument was within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no emolument was
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
the Directors of the Company, as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019:
Nil).

Bl & & £ 7 1,000,000 7T 2 A ©

HE-_ZT-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
HIR > YEEM AL BEARFGZES
EXAMEERETS MASEMALES
KReReUERBBREE(ZZE—NF:
) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. B8R &R

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are calculated
by dividing the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

AAREBFEABE-S-_FER=
E-AFT_A=T—BILZEEZS
BEARBERNDEAFENSET
WRRNE TR -

2019
—NF
Profit EF
Profit for the year attributable to owners 2 & E &R 2 7] Eé =iEA AL
of the Company for the purposes of BFRANTGESREARRES
basic and diluted earnings per share 2 BF 2,027,369 9,462,022
Number of shares BB EE

Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESREARALEERN 2

shares for the purposes of basic and 38 A% b0 1 % 8K
diluted earnings per share

LSRG GRO RS 1,145,546,000

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 as there was no potential dilutive ordinary share for
both 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % - BEKRKRE

Plant,
machinery
Hotel Furniture Leasehold and
property and fixtures improvements equipment Total
HH R BE - #es
iRy ES #E YL R®E BE
COST B
At 1 January 2019 RZTE—hhF—HA—H 92,391,462 3,224,472 19,424,160 6,595,343 121,635,437
Additions NE — 28,000 — 188,949 216,949
Disposals HE — (68,012) - (56,591) (124,608)
Exchange adjustments & XA - (69,620) (639,992) (132,725) (842,337)
At 31 December 2019 and A -ZT — H4
1 January 2020 +-A=+—HK
—E-ZFH¥—H—H 92,391,462 3,114,840 18,784,168 6,594,976 120,885,446
Additions NE . 430,158 . 202,077 632,235
Disposals & — (7,513) — (96,610) (104,123)
Exchange adjustments [ 5, 3 =& — 197,570 1,208,325 414,299 1,820,194
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZTF
+=ZA=+—H 92,391,462 3,735,055 19,992,493 7,114,742 123,233,752
ACCUMULATED R EREE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—HF—H 75,452,107 2,589,347 12,938,790 4,615,837 95,596,081
Provided for the year KEFHE 2,449,064 130,434 1,236,120 408,438 4,224,056
Eliminated on disposals & B Y8 I 8 - (61,660) — (30,687) (92,347)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 B — (58,079) (519,824) (100,909) (678,812)
At 31 December 2019 and RN _ZT— NF
1 January 2020 +-A=1+—H8K
—E-TF¥—H—H 77,901,171 2,600,042 13,655,086 4,892,679 99,048,978
Provided for the year KEEFE 2,449,064 172,580 923,121 368,626 3,918,391
Eliminated on disposals H e B Y 8 N2 Y — (7,513) — (64,213) (71,726)
Exchange adjustments BE 51 56 B — 175,493 930,925 326,173 1,432,591
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZTF
+=-—A=+—8 80,350,235 2,940,602 15,509,132 5,623,265 104,323,234
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2020 NR-B_-EHE
+=ZH=+—H 12,041,227 794,453 4,483,361 1,591,477 18,910,518
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—-hF
+-—A=+—H 14,490,291 514,798 5,129,082 1,702,297 21,836,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BMERERE @

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amount of hotel property. In
performing impairment testing, the directors of the Company
reviewed the carrying amount of this asset by reference to a
valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on a value-
in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period and a discount rate of 6.75% (2019: 6.77%) per annum.
The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those
regarding the discount rate, growth in revenue, direct and other
operating costs during the period. The management estimates
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

There was no impairment for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FFREEE
Leasehold Office
Land premise Total
HE L D85 Fr 4 28
COST 12 ;R A
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—H 12,961,874 — 12,961,874
Additions NE — 4,144,740 4,144,740
Balance at 31 December 2019, R_ZT—hF+_A=+—H
1 January 2020 and CZEZTF-HA—BK
31 December 2020 —E_EF+-A=+—H 12,961,874 4,144,740 17,106,614
DEPRECIATION wE
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE—-—AF—H—H — — —
Provided for the year RKEFEIE 1,874,007 1,151,317 3,025,324
Balance at 31 December 2019 WR-_Z—HAF+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2020 T _ZTF—F—H 1,874,007 1,151,317 3,025,324
Provided for the year REFHE 1,874,007 1,381,575 3,255,582
Balance at 31 December 2020 MR- ZE_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 3,748,014 2,532,892 6,280,906
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
Balance at 31 December2020 R—ZE_-_ZEHFE+_-_H=+—H 9,213,860 1,611,848 10,825,708
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hFE+_-_HA=+—H 11,087,867 2,993,423 14,081,290
2020 2019
—EC-EE — T NF
Interest on lease liabilities (note 10) HEBEZFE (ME10) 68,986 87,227
Expense relating to short-term leases EHHEENHeMX 60,773 345,176
Total cash outflow for leases HERSER 1,504,373 1,548,176
Addition to right-of-use assets FTREEERNE 4,144,740
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. ﬁ Fﬁ *E ﬁ E (48)

The Group leases leasehold land and office premise for its
operations. Lease terms are agreed on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group entered into short-term leases for staff quarters and
office premise. As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of these
outstanding short-term leases is similar to the portfolio during
the year ended 31 December 2020 with the corresponding
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 9.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Leases for office premise and staff quarters are agreed for
terms ranging from one to three years, but may have
termination options as described below. The lease for the
leasehold land is agreed for a term of twenty years, with
remaining of six years as of 1 January 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$10,825,708 (2019: HK$14,081,290) were
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not enter
into any leases that is not yet commenced.
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17. RlGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has termination option in the lease for office premise.
This is used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
termination option held is exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

The lease liabilities of office premise amounting to
HK$1,654,353 (2019: HK$3,028,967) are recognised as at 31
December 2020.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no such
triggering event.

Notes:

[0] Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement signed between the
Xiamen Railway Department Company Limited (“‘Railway Department”) and
Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”), both parties have agreed to establish a Sino-
foreign co-operative joint venture enterprise known as Xiamen South East
Asia Hotel Company, Limited (“Xiamen Plaza”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company to operate and manage Xiamen South East
Asia Hotel (the “Hotel”). The land use rights of the Hotel have been granted
to the joint venture partner and Xiamen Plaza is vested with the land use
rights of the Hotel throughout the operation period of Xiamen Plaza.

(ii) At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of its leasehold land. The leasehold land is used in the
Group’s hotel segment. In performing impairment testing, the directors of
the Company reviewed the carrying amount of the leasehold land by
reference to a valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.
Norton Appraisals Limited is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and
a discount rate of 6.75% (2019: 6.77%) per annum. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth in revenue, direct and other operating costs during the period. The
management estimates discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

There was no impairment for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REW #

2019
—E-NF
FAIR VALUE NRE
Balance at beginning of year FA 4 235,300,000 230,300,000
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value REBHERZ
recognised in profit or loss ARESEE) B (1,500,000) 5,000,000
Balance at end of year F R4 233,800,000 235,300,000
Unrealised (loss)/gain on properties PREREE AERMESR
revaluation included in profit or loss (E518), /W= (BN EAM
(included in other gains and losses) Wz & E5i8) (1,500,000) 5,000,000

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by Norton
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Surveyors.

The fair value of the commercial property units were determined
based on the income approach, where the current passing
rents and market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The current passing rents
are assessed by reference to the current tenancy agreements.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the vyields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar commercial properties
in Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific to
the Group’s investment properties. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior years.
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties are their current use.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
was the discount rates used, which ranged from 2.25% to 9.0%
per annum (2019: 2.5% to 5.0% per annum). An increase in the
discount rate used would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice versa.

Another key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
was the reversionary income potential of the tenancies. The
higher the reversionary income potential of the tenancies, the
higher the fair value of the investment properties, and vice
versa.

The fair value of the parking space was determined based on
direct comparison method, which was making reference to
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjust
to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject property.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 are as
follows:

Commercial property units located {7 7 & 8 19 75 2 14

in Hong Kong LIES
Parking space located in MR EENEEAL
Hong Kong

There was no transfer into or out of Level 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

-t 114 FE=R

800,000 233,000,000

18. REW X w)

REFMEZARER  FAVEZES
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THBEB K - FABRIE RN FHF225%E
9.0% (=T —NF: BF25%%E5.0%) °
MRELFABSSHREVEZAAE
2R RZINA e

Hp S —HEIEHBEEERFGERED
EDHEAONERKRARED LB ERK
ABNEFARBESRENEZAAREL
Tt RZIRA -

FEMNAAERREERLBIEAE
o EE2EMS LREBEABRENYMER
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LI

Fair value as at
31 December

Level 2 Level 3 2020

R-ZFE-FHF
t=A=+-—AH
ZRARE

= 233,000,000 233,000,000

800,000 800,000

233,800,000

HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HHMERK
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. IR E Y % @)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information R-ZE—NWhE+_A=+—HBAXAEHKX
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 are as EMEZHBRALBERER 2 ER T
follows: (NS
Fair value as at
31 December
Level 2 Level 3 2019
RZZE—NF
+=ZA=+—8
ER E= ZANE
Commercial property units located i 7 % # #) 7 2 14 - 234,500,000 234,500,000
in Hong Kong 173
Parking space located in IR &AM IEER 800,000 — 800,000
Hong Kong
800,000 234,500,000 235,300,000
There was no transfer into or out of Level 2 and 3 during the HE-_ZE—hF+-_A=+—BHBER
year ended 31 December 2019. IR ASEHE - R =/ -

142 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

19. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, t
in the following subsidiaries:

19. i B 2 B %Il &R

he Company had interests KRR -—_ZE-—FTSHF+-_F=+—HEK
“TE-AFT-A=Z+T—HFAFBRZE
EHBARESEFENT -

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

registered capital Principal activities
BRITRE
=t & A E FTEXEK

Place of Proportion of
establishment/ nominal value
incorporation and of issued capital/
principal place of registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operations held by the Company
R G AR B EAG
RIREE ERTRE FHMRER
i PN E 3k HEZBED L
2019
—ZE-NF
%
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMERR:
Ming Chuen Construction Company, Hong Kong 100
Limited
FIREARAA )
Yan Hei Limited Hong Kong 100
CREBERRAR i
Champ Profit Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 100
(“Champ Profit”)
HEDAKREARAR(@BEEAR]) &
Nice Profit International Limited Hong Kong -
HEBEBRAERAR BB
Indirect subsidiary:
BEWE QA :
Xiamen Plaza (note) PRC 100
FOB (GE) g
Note: Xiamen Plaza was established as a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture ]

company under the laws of the PRC and is currently wholly-owned by Yan

Hei.

Ordinary HK$100,000 Investment holding
3 1% 100,000 7T REER

Ordinary HK$10,000 Investment holding
and Deferred (note (i)
HK$10,000

L 3@ 1% 10,0007 7T REZER
Rl FE B An (RE ()
10,0007 7T

Registered capital Investment holding
Ordinary HK$1
AfMEARLTEERIET KREZR

Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding

LTRR1ET REZER

Registered capital Hotel operations
US$5,000,000

51t & 75,000,000 7T JFJE ¥ 7

ROB TR R R E AR K MBEE R E MK L
BFRSNEIERZE  THEE2EHES -
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 20. RBtE N Rl z =
Details of the Group’s interest in associates are as follows: AEB HBEQNRFBET :
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NF
Share of net assets FEE S 115,860,756 99,244,445
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had interest in RZE_TF+_A=+—B k=
the following associates: NE+ZA=+—BAXER 5 % ’A A
B
Place of

establishment/
incorporation

and principal Proportion of
place of ownership interest Proportion of voting rights
Name of associates operation held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
BRIREE AEBEM AEBERBEN
BENE BB 2 i B BENREREERL A SR B FTEEK
2019
Z—NF

Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co., PRC 25 Design, manufacturing

Ltd. (“Harmony Piano”) (Indirect) (Indirect) (Indirect) (Indirect) and distribution of
piano and related
products

BMAMBWERGGRAE FE 25 25 A BHERSHE
([N 0= 1) G (H#) B (H#) WHERBEER
Fujian Huamin Leasing PRC 40 40 40 40 Provision of financial

Company Limited (Direct) i (Direct) (Direct) leasing and

(“Fujian Huamin Leasing”) associated services
BREEREMERRAF B H 40 40 40 REREEER
(MfEEEE] (B#%) (EER®%
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. A E DT 2 = @)
Summarised financial information of associates BENF 2B EREE
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s UTNABREBNES NG 2B BHRERE
associates is set out below. The summarised financial NEeBZUHBERNBE  DHIRBEBTBK
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s 5 YEBI T 2 o

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity REEMBERRP AR S A A Jh
method in these consolidated financial statements. FAEZREARR -
Harmony Piano =
2020 2019
—EZF —E-NF
Current assets MENEE 70,670,077 63,895,933
FERBEE
Non-current assets 15,491,318 16,388,656
o BB &
Current liabilities (17,178,170) (17,835,568)
— ERBEE
Non-current liabilities = —
Revenue W25 42,401,535 55,819,450
Profit/(loss) for the year REZRF/(EE) 2,381,520 (305,289)

Other comprehensive income for the year 7x 4F & E fth 2 [ Ur 25 - —

Total comprehensive income/(expense) ARNEEZE 2 MW () 4258
for the year 2,381,520 (805,289)

Dividend received from the associate W B ERBE R ZRE
during the year

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to J: st B F& & KL E B 4T A B S 3R 3R N e
the carrying amounts of the interest in associates recognised in RN & N R RERS ﬁ WERMAT :

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Net assets of Harmony Piano MERNEZFEE 68,983,225 62,449,021
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N5 [ R i AR 8 = 1 R
interest in Harmony Piano EAEEZED L 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the Group’s 7N £2 [ 9 R0 22 8 =
interest in Harmony Piano ZEEREE 17,245,806 15,612,255
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20. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REtE N B 2 =
Summarised financial information of associates MENTZHBEERBE @
(Continued)

Fujian Huamin Leasing BEERES

2020 2019

ZEZEF —T-NF

Current assets mEEE 456,549,665 536,622,066
Non-current assets ERBEE 461,552,336 326,900,026
Current liabilities mBAE (CYENGEREAN  (444,504,625)
Non-current liabilities FEnEBEE ((ERRLWEIN  (209,846,992)
Revenue Uz 57,251,966 31,098,100
Profit for the year NEEAF 22,717,760 8,478,847

Other comprehensive income for the year 7N 4 € H fib 2 m W 25 — —

Total comprehensive income for the year 78 [& 2 [ Y 25 42 48 22,717,760 8,478,847
Dividend received from the associate WE B EREE AR ZIRE
during the year _
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Pl B EREGES T BRERPERDN
the carrying amount of the interest in associates recognised in B ATEZNERSBENYEWNT -
the consolidated financial statements as follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-hF
Net assets of Fujian Huamin Leasing BREREENFEE 246,537,375 209,080,475
Proportion of the Group’s ownership KREBAREEER
interest in Fujian Huamin Leasing HE R E IR B 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7 £ [&] A 18 2
Fujian Huamin Leasing HEME®EE 98,614,950 83,632,190
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
Consumables SEFEN 283,736 332,289
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 & H i FE W BR =X
2020 2019
—E-ZEF —E-NF
Trade receivables JEW E B R 1,372,269 908,774
Loss allowance BB (122,815) (70,090)
1,249,454 838,684
Other receivables, utility deposits and HEpEZE - ABHREIZS
prepayments S EENE S 14,465,500 13,472,892
Loss allowance WAE (13,476,168) (12,657,767)
989,332 815,125
Total trade and other receivables B 5 N E M pE KR AR 2,238,786 1,653,809
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of loss AR 2 f:.t EREHBEBEEZEA Y
allowance presented based on the invoice dates at the end of JEWE 5 IN G IB R BENRE DN -

the reporting period.

2020 2019
—E-FF —ENF
0-30 days 0-30°K 1,274,492 832,043
31-60 days 31-60K - 2,701
61-90 days 61-90K 18,544 3,940
91-180 days 91-180K 4,634 —
181-360 days 181-360 &< = -
Over 360 days 18 #8360 K 74,599 70,090
1,372,269 908,774
Less: Loss allowance AR (B R (122,815) (70,090)
1,249,454 838,684
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables HE —_ZE-_ZEFE+-_BR=t+—HE—
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in —NWE+-_A=+—BItEENE S &
note 30. EL A, JE WK IE R (B BT 1 5 1B S M EE30 ©
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

23. HEe RIBITHER

Cash at bank and in hand WRIOTKEFTRES
Short-term bank deposits EHSRITER

2020 2019
—E-F%F —hF
55,701,628 48,621,964

- 7,344,865

55,701,628 55,966,829

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed
interest rates of 2.60% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2019.

At 31 December 2020, time deposit, cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$44,490,939 (2019: HK$44,280,103). The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange control restrictions imposed by the government of the
Mainland China.

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

&
-\
=l
e
OH

NFE+=-A=+—H

R-B_Z2F+_A=1+—8H" &K
HERXR ReRBTERBARE

R RERRTERZBN KRG

COFSRG!

—ZF—
TR B\ITENE260E 2 B E H=EH

SEE
(TAR

B ) 4 B8 A 4944,490,939% T (Z T — AL

F 1 44,280,103/ 70) ° & ¢ [ H # X
o B IR B B 9 SN BE B I FTRR o

24. ESREMEMERKN

EEE

2019

—E-hnF

Trade payables B E SRR 2,226,076 1,855,425
Other payables H th JE - BR X 10,359,502 10,265,108
Total trade and other payables B REMERERER 12,585,578 12,120,533

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

EBNEZRARFERREERIRE

0-180 days 0-180H
181-360 days 181-360 H
Over 360 days H B 360 H

BZERESITWT :
2019
—E-NF
1,987,792 1,675,682
238,284 3,100
— 176,643
2,226,076 1,855,425

The average credit period is 60 days (2019: 60 days).
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25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HE&E
2019
—hF
Lease liabilities payable: EREERE:
Within one year R—FR 1,414,614 1,374,614
Within a period of more than one % 7 — {8 7~ i i — 4 Hi RS
year but not more than two
years 239,739 1,654,353
1,654,353 3,028,967
Less: Amount due for settlement J& : 2 B (E18 N7/~ 1218 A 89
with 12 months shown under EEERR
current liabilities (1,414,614) (1,374,614)
Amount due for settlement after JighBEE NETRNI12@E A B H
12 months shown under JE B R
non-current liabilities 239,739 1,654,353
26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. iE I Fi 18
The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised UTBAEERAFERBEFERER
and movements thereon during the current and prior year: ZEBRETIAEG N EE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Total
MEFERE 428
At 1 January 2019 R-E—NF—H—H 4,083,119 4,083,119
Credit to profit or loss (note 11) REZEFE R (FMFE11) (740,269) (740,269)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-hF+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 T Z_ZTFE—F—H 3,342,850 3,342,850
Credit to profit or loss (note 11) Rz (FFE11) (978,684) (978,684)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZEBE-ZEF+=-HA=+—H 2,364,166 2,364,166
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &; =

26. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

ZE-TFEF A=+ —HIEFE (REBTIR)

26. iE 7E B 15 (@)

Deferred tax assets ELEMREBEEE
Tax losses
HIEE B
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R=Z—hFE—HA—A8 "
1 January 2020 and _i—jlfF'i'_H_'f'—El'
31 December 2020 —E_ZF—-A-HK
—E-EF+=-HA=+—H 1,886,819

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of nN=—=
HK$165,543,814 (2019: HK$164,741,170) available for offset

—%¢+—ﬂ:+—a PN
B 51655438143 w( = & — 1 F:

against future taxable profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operated in the PRC will expire within 5 years. No tax losses
were expired during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$11,435,263 (2019:
HK$11,435,263). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$154,108,551 (2019:
HK$153,305,907) due to the unpredictability of future profit

164,741|17O/%7E>Z§D+TRIEE5TE73§£\|ZE
HiAEEE o [ B A B A B N 2 R WE RIS S
BHeRAFRESH R_Z_TF+=
A=Z+—BR=-ZZE—NAF+_A=+—
B R B FisEIE R H o

R—E-_FEE+-_A=+—H'B
HBRAELEHFHEEENMEEREA
11,435,263;‘%%57_1 (ZZ— N4 : 11,435,263
BIL)c BRAEEBFBEZABF &
I £ $£154,108,551F L (= & — N F ¢

streams.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid & %17 & & & R &

R—A—8AkK
+-A=+—H

At 1 January and
31 December

1,145,546,000

28. RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 74.
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27. A&
2020 2019
—E-2F —E—NF
Number Number
of shares of shares HK$
=8A 7 IREEH BT

el eRIEHIPA A 1,145,546,000 898,839,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (including
trade and other payables and lease liabilities), net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement.

Gearing ratio

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regularly basis. As part of this review, the management of the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issue as well as
the issue of new debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

20. EXEERE

AEEERHER UBRASEETE
BREREESEQLLER RREBENL
BB EBRAER BB RERE R - AEE
ZEBRBETF -

AEBZEARBEEERB(BRESR
EHENERMEERE) RekRe
FEAEBARARRBFEARGEZ &
BREBRTEA FERRBEER -

AEE AL BERINEBEMEAE AT K o

BELR

7K 8 0 B 5 A58 0 A A A o AN R
BEREGEAAARARGERARY
B AR (EAEE R HG  BEE
BENEE AEEREEEERL B
77370 R B 17 57 40 £ 75 DA T 167 8 g 8 A
R -

BELERAFERRNOT

2020 2019

il = F

Debt (note (i) &I (5E() 14,239,931 15,149,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEE (55,701,628) (55,966,829)
Net debt B FEE (41,461,697) (40,817,329)

Equity (note (ii)) % 7 #E 25 (5 (i)

422,903,854

411,163,807

Net debt to equity ratio

FE R B AR b R

N/A N/A

Notes:

(i) Debt comprises trade and other payables and lease liabilities as detailed in
note 24 and 25 respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

() BREELDES REMEMNERMEEAE
FHED R HITE24 525 °

(i MRS BEASBPTA EAREE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. 2@ T A

(@ €®MIEBESHE

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2019
—NF
Financial assets EtMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEHENAINR 2 SREE
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 & E M fE AR R 1,829,524 1,600,908
— Cash and bank balances —IRe NIRRT 55,701,628 55,966,829
57,531,152 57,567,737
Financial liabilities cRasE
Amortised cost B AR
— Trade and other payables — B RHEMEMNIER 11,710,204 10,476,957
— lease liabilities —HEAE 1,654,353 3,028,967
13,364,557 13,505,924

TREREEBENBXR

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

(b)

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and
other payables and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Substantially revenue and cost of the Group are
denominated in the functional currency of the Group
entities. Certain trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables and lease
liabilities are denominated in RMB. The Group is therefore
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency
exposures, primarily with respect to RMB.

Management periodically monitors foreign currency
exposures and considers hedging significant foreign
currency exposures should the need arises.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,979,000 (2019: HK$2,277,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-denominated trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and
bank balances.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to significant fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investment at the end of
reporting period, the Group is not subject to significant
price risk.

30. @I A
b csmEKREEBEMBEK

(%)

™ % B b

I JE e B B
REBETEWERKAAZAHEBA
ANEEETE - HEETESRE
tEWEE B RIETHESK E
SREMBMERLBE S G
AR EEEN - A It A& F &
XEBSIBRMIINERR TEREE
AARERRR -

EEETHEENERREERR
BEREREHPERINERR

RZE_ZEFF+_A=+—8"
M HM Al & A REFTE
BILHEYAREEE FE%:
ZEERENBES LA TRE
JC 491,979,000 (= T — N & :
2,277,000 70) c EEERBE A
REFENESREMERK . &
SR EM BN R RIS MBITE R
5| B M SNE Wi 2k B 1B o

T 2 7l Bz
AEBIRAEB DA BENXRER
EHBEERENXRER ANEBER
I @A RGP RR A E7
EEEMNXER YKEEFTER
ZEEIPEB RN KR

H it E 1% m R
HRBEMRLEFAEEARE
AEEBAEAIBERNELMERREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R e B IS IR R MY & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. R T A mw

b) TR EREERFEMNBUER

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Groups’
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and bank balances. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets, except that the Group holds rental
deposits from tenants for leasing of properties.

Bank balances

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalent since they are
deposited at state-owned banks and other medium or
large size listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers. The Group assesses the credit quality of each
customer by taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Credit limits are reviewed
on periodic basis, and the finance department is
responsible for such monitoring procedures. In
determining whether provision for impairment of
receivables is required, the Group takes into consideration
the future cash flows, ageing status and the likelihood of
collection. In this regard, the directors are satisfied that
the risks of impairment are monitored and adequate
provision, if any, has been made in the consolidated
financial statements. There was no single customer
contributing over 10% of the total trade receivables of the
Group. The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. The directors of the Company
closely monitor the subsequent settlement of the
customers. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually or based on provision matrix and credit-
impaired individually and/or collectively.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The Directors believe that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL.

30. @I A
b csmEKREEBEMBEK

(&)
1= F & B FRUE RS @)

B S5 EWRERM
AEBEEHEBRRAERREAE
EEELENEPIELHEE MA
SEEHHERPETERENMG
AEEBEEREEMBAN  BE
RKekRltRAEFEEREFRPH
EFEEEXR -EERBESEHR
MHFHEEEERA REER
CHEZRERFBARERER K
SEEETERARERE KRk Rk
WHRAEE - RIS - EFER
EERERRERNGEEMBERRA
EFHRABE(NE) YREE-—F
FEBASEEKE ZRRXEED
10% A £ AEBEY \EMEME
AREEETRBR - NRAREEEY
ERTPMNRERZLE - I & H
EERHEERREATEBIR
EERBTEARYEHHRBETH
BErffh TEBAN REBHEE
EREK -

H it JE W 5 F 7 7
HREMERZANES RAIES
ERBEELEETH BENK
B ARERETEERAIEKA
FIE I TR & 3 N Al S 5 A BE
MEANEEMELEEM  EHF
il H At & W 5 A0 77 SR B0 AT U B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. R T A mw

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures and ECL
for trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2020

TREREEBEMBE
(#0)

1= F & B FURUE RS @)

TRAMAINHLTESRKRKNEE
REMBEREERX -

As at 31 December 2019

R-B-ZF RZZE-NE
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-8
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
Loss rate amounts allowance amounts allowance
BEx REAE HERE REERE  NEEE
Internal creditrating R EE TR
Low risk * 1% & B > 2020: 3.72%
ZEZEF372% 1,297,670 48,216 838,684 —
— Lifetime ECL, not —2HEHEER (2019:Ni)
credit impaired K WEREBEE (ZE2E-NE:H)
A&
In default ** E U 2020: 100%
ZZTTF 1 100%
— Lifetime ECL, — 2 HIEEEEE  (2019: 100%)
credit impaired KEHBRE (ZZ—1F:100%) 74,599 74,599 70,090 70,090

Referring to debtors have a low risk of default and do not have any
prior default records and are considered as not credit-impaired.

wok

Referred to debtors have evidence indicating the assets are credit-
impaired.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for credit-impaired balances, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal
credit rating.

Debtors with credit-impaired with gross carrying amount
of HK$74,599 (2019: HK$70,090) as at 31 December
2020 were assessed individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. R T A mw

b) EMEAREEEENRXR

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised loss allowance of HK$48,216 (2019: Nil),
based on provision matrix. No additional loss allowance
was made on credit-impaired debtors, except for the
effect of exchange differences.

The movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade
receivables during the year was as follows.

(%)

1= F & B FRUE RS @)

BEIBRAXEIRBEBAEHE
NELLBERIIMNBOXRM[E I
BREBEELETEERARKANG
MNAESHRIREEEMETAE -

REEzE—_ZE_F2F+-_A=+—H
IEN—FR AEEREBEEEE
MRIER T482168 L (ZF — N
FoE) - REXZENFEIN I
REHEEXENEBS AREEIN
BB -

RN EFEE 5 e U TR (B B & 0 # F)
BRAT e

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
2HEBEE 2HEHEE
BXR(ERE Bx
5 AREE) (5 AR {E) BE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NIF
—H—H — 71,656 71,656
Exchange realignment FE & ) 28 — (1,566) (1,566)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-ZA=+—8 — 70,090 70,090
Impairment loss recognised &, # 2 5 (B &5 18 48,216 — 48,216
Exchange realignment P = i & - 4,509 4,509
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZZZEHF
+=ZA=+—8 48,216 74,599 122,815
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R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &

ES

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures and ECL
for other receivables and deposits.

Range of loss rate

ERXEE

ZE-TFEF A=+ —HIEFE (REBTIR)

30. €@ T B

(b)

As at 31 December 2020

Internal credit rating
Low risk *

— 12m ECL

In default **

— Lifetime ECL,
credit impaired

REE AR
15 fan >

—t=EANES
EEBEAE

EH

- 2HEREER
xX - ERRE

2020: 0.01%—1.49%
BT

—= =

0.01%—1.49%

(2019: Ni
(Z2—NnEF: &)

2020: 100%

—E-F
—FC%

(2019: 100%)

©100%

(ZZ—NF : 100%)

TREREEEBENMBE
(#0)

1= F & B FURUE RS @)

TREFAS T H R KRR ER
MmEERBRMEHREERSL -

As at 31 December 2019

RZBE-ZHF RZZ-N&F
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-8
Gross Gross

carrying Loss carrying Loss
amounts allowance amounts allowance
IRE A% HERE REAE EREEC
584,238 762,224 —
13,472,000 13,472,000 12,657,767 12,657,767

Referring to debtors have a low risk of default and do not have any
prior default records and are considered as not credit-impaired.

Referred to debtors have evidence indicating the assets are credit-

impaired.

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Group consider the probability of default is minimal after
assessing the counter-parties’ financial background and
creditability. The Group has assessed and concluded that
the expected credit loss rate for these receivables under
12m ECL method after taken into account the historical
default experience, historical settlement records as well
as the loss upon default in each case and are adjusted
with forward-looking information. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance
of HK$4,168 (2019: Nil), based on provision matrix.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Debtors with credit-impaired with gross carrying amount
of HK$13,472,000 (2019: HK$12,657,767) as at 31
December 2020 were assessed individually. No additional
loss allowance was made on credit-impaired debtors,
except for the effect of exchange differences.

30. @I A
b csmEKREEBEMBEK

(%)

1= F & B FRUE RS @)

H E2020412H31H It B & @&
R &138,472,0008 T (=T — L &F :
12,657,767 L) MEEXBE A
PREZ TG BRERZENY
B RBEHEEXENES AR

HEEINRERE -
The movement in the loss allowance in respect of other 7N 5 2 OH R CEL fh iR UG A IR £ B9 R
receivables and deposits during the year was as follows. BERESBERWOT -
12m ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
ZHEHEER 2HEHEE
BR(AKXRE Bk
EARE) (5 AR {E) wmE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—IF
—H—H — 12,952,037 12,952,037
Exchange realignment b R & — (294,270) (294,270)
At 31 December 2019 RN_E—-—NF+A
=+—H — 12,657,767 12,657,767
Impairment loss recognised &, & 2.5 & & 18 4,168 — 4,168
Exchange realignment PE & 5 — 814,233 814,233
At 31 December 2020 RE-E-ZF
+=-—HA=+—8 4,168 13,472,000 13,476,168
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. R T A mw

b)) eREREEEEMBE

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

(#)

REBEcHEMER
REBRBHELERE  AE@EE
BREFRSRERBSEEER
EEERBRRZKFEUALIHLAE
BraELRRERERERBZY
2,

REBEZH &

TRAIAEHESRABZHTA
MEFBERL ZERESIARA
MEIRZEBRABRHEERIES
RREZBIHERS - ZEH
ERRBEAEERBRERZ R
PRAMMEEZENRASRE -

On demand or Total

less than 1to3 3 months 1to Over  undiscounted Carrying amount
1 month months  to 1 year S5years  5years cash flows at 31 December
RER +=A
LR -2 =ZfiRZ —-FZ ikl Fi B =t—-H2
—f8A =EA iE if RERE HE

2020 g 33
Trade payables B 5 E{tBR 2,226,076 - - 2,226,076 2,226,076
Other payables  E{th fE 14 BR &% 8,748,628 735,500 - 9,484,128 9,484,128
Lease liabilites HEE&E 120,300 360,900 962,400 240,600 1,684,200 1,654,353
11,095,004 1,096,400 962,400 240,600 13,394,404 13,364,557

2019 —E-NE
Trade payables & 5 fER B 1,855,425 - - - 1,855,425 1,855,425
Other payables ~ E #h B BR 7% 7,911,532 710,000 - - 8,621,532 8,621,582
Lease liabilities HEEE 120,300 360,900 962,400 1,684,200 - 3,127,800 3,028,967
9,887,257 1,070,900 962,400 1,684,200 — 13,604,757 13,505,924
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e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year (2019: Nil).

The fair values of the financial assets included in the Level
3 categories have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being
the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
31 December 2020

30. @I A
c) EMIE2AREETE

L B E £2 4 B BE AN o B 40 ] BE AR
BeREENERABHNAAE-

FRAYEEASLELE - F_K
E=R(CE-—NF: 8-

BAEESRIEBMAENALE
PREBEREREAFNLRE
BEXEE ERREEZHE
ERARBXSHFHEEAR
47 5 o

R=MZAREFEHE
—F=-FF+=A=1+-—-H

Financial assets
at FVTPL

LA R R
AREZ
TREE

Opening balance HR ¥ #4 %R
Purchases A
Disposals k==

Total gains in profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

RBmBZ B
SN T K R 1

79,273,173
(79,219,411)
1,121,914
(1,175,676)

Closing balance HAR g2 %R
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. €@ T B
(c) Fair value measurement of financial c) EMIECAREEE@®
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=ZMzAAREBEFEHR @
(Continued)
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+=A=+—H
Financial assets
at FVTPL
BB B 5 A
REERREZ
DELE E
Opening balance ERF) eR ¥E -
Purchases BA 90,252,700
Disposals & (89,070,272)
Total gains in profit or loss REZEF 2B 1,017,982
Exchange adjustments INEEFER = Ry & (2,200,410)
Closing balance HREREE -
Of the total gains or losses for the year included in profit EERARESHRN ZBRBERZUAR
or loss, HK$1,121,914 (2019: HK$1,017,982) relates to B;h\@fg B2 BE11219145 T
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held —ET— N F:1,017,982F ) B 5T
during the year. Fair value gains or losses on financial AREEZ2FHAWNRNHIEELRS
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included in ERAFEZEZP - BBALE
“other gains and losses”. ZEBEARBAABEZEMEER
mEEEIE M S REIEP -
31. OPERATING LEASES 1. REHEZH
The Group as lessor AEEBAHEA
Property rental income earned during the year was RERNBEIRZ2WEERSKAL A
HK$6,996,370 (2019: HK$7,162,074). All of the Group’s 6,996,370 7L (=& — JL4F : 7,162,074 %
investment properties are held for rental purposes. The Group ) AEBZIEEMEESEBELAHR
leases its investment properties under operating lease B NEF UKL S LE LAY E -
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from HYECZHEREAERBERRY B —
one to five years (2019: one to five years). ERF(ZE—NF:—Z2RHF) -
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HErEKSZERSERZTWNOT :

2020 2019
—E-EH —ZT—NF

6,152,931 9,794,475
3,163,394 5,119,353
1,907,490 2,885,806

- 1,687,453

11,223,815 19,487,087

Within one year

In the second year
In the third year

In the fourth year

IERIIRREE:)

S5 5 5
|
B
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES R.HMETHELENEBSHIER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TERAMINE THREBSIBROEAE
ERENES BERASMIERSE-

MERPFEENEBERERASREM
ﬁj@ﬁkxi/ﬁu%mLEH#EKE.Eﬁi =
i/ﬂLE%%EF'/\*Eﬁmﬁé/ﬁibﬁimiﬁi

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities. M= °
2020
—E-EH
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-FTF—H—H 3,028,967
Financial cash flow BER S M
— Repayment of lease liabilities —EEMEARG (1,443,600)
Non-cash changes R EEF
— Interest expense — F BT H 68,986
At 31 December 2020 N-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—H 1,654,353
2019
—NF
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-hLF—H—H —
Financial cash flow BER S M
— Repayment of lease liabilities —BEHEAE (1,208,000)
Non-cash changes IR
— New lease —#HAE 4,144,740
— Interest expense — F B % 87,227
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—H 3,028,967

RBEZIRERDE
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

(@

(b)

Employee share-based compensation
benefits

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent
the fair value of employee services estimated to be
received in exchange for the grant of the relevant options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The
amount for each period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the options over the relevant vesting periods
and is recognised as employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

Share options

Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to provide
participants of the same with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the share options
scheme

(i) any Executive, Non-executive or Independent Non-
executive Director of any member of the Group or an
entity in which the Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”); (ii)
any employee or officer (whether full time or part time)
(“Employee”) of the Group or an Affiliate; (i) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or an Affiliate
who has, in the opinion of the Board of Directors,
contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group; (iv) any customer, supplier, agent,
partner, consultant or adviser of or contractor to any
member of the Group or an Affiliate; or (v) the trustee of
any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any
director, employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant or adviser of or contractor to any member of
the Group or an Affiliate; or (v a company beneficially
owned by any director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor any
member of the Group or an Affiliate.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

3B.UBRBABERZRS @

(b) Share options (continued)

(b) 58 AR #E )

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be granted
under the share options scheme and any other schemes
involving the issue or grant of options or similar rights over
shares or other securities by the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the share options scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Unless approved by the shareholders, no option may be
granted to any eligible participants which if exercised in
full would result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options already granted
or to be granted to such eligible participant under the
share options scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
such new grant.

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares
option must be taken up or for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options and
time to accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the share
options scheme shall be accepted within 28 days from
the offer date and by way of payment of a consideration
of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the share options scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Board of Directors to
each participant, which period may commence on the
date on which the offer for the grant of options is made
but shall end in any event not more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option.

A BITHE 2B
e B ey kgl e
R (BEARRET R RBRE
AP RE MBS 2 BOER) &
BAaRTERBERESEEER
BB HATRD 2 10% °

E2HRAZRESERA
BRI R AL AE SN EM A B2 A
EREBRER ZEBERERES
BIOTERIEZTRODABE ALK
REBREFSIDCHRAGEHRE
BB (BREITE  FHERT
EERE)BITERE THRIT IR
DR REEFHEER(BREE
Bt —EAMEATFEAART
R HEBHREEITRAZ 1% -

BB RE BB RATER
RERABE
BREYEVARERBANITRE
A ZEEHBZRE -

BB RE 2 B RERE
MIEE 2B
REBREASIEEBREZR
# AEEZAHES T NABRA
AZMHREB1UETZ T AEMR -

TEBEREZzRRAE

R 5 8 AR R R AR A AT B RN
SEMETRANGSABAZHMB
PO BE B 17 2 - 3% HB RO AT A BB ARAE it
B A MG BREAMERT
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EmsEreRAT —2—=&% 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B B3 AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 —Z—_ZT &+ A =+—HILEE (B THIR)

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) Share options (continued)

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company and shall not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

@iy ~ the nominal value of a share.

Life of the share options scheme

The share options scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of two years commencing on the date of
adoption of the share options scheme.

There was no Company’s share option held by Directors

and employees as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

No option was granted under the share options scheme
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the Mainland China
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$309,573
(2019: HK$757,223) represents contributions paid to these
plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
There was no outstanding contribution as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

34.

g SRR

AEBRERHMEAE((RES]
EMRPIZRAIRR - REMBETERE
RUBEL BTN EERAREEN

5B TEEHAAEE -

AEERTEAMZHEBRARERDE
ZERBRA 2E-BEREEHE LR
P& RRBHEE - HBRRARKRT
BRAEIEE B 2Lt R AR KR8 R &
IR AEEREAKRBATE 2HE—F
EFEHEEHRR -

FiA S B A BRIz & A309,573 T (=
T—NF 757223 B ERRAEER
BIEOIFEIRHRZIBELE - AREBR
22 F+A=F+—HEZZE—N
F+ZA=+—"HPRWEREREEE -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B. @HALTZRS

Extension of operating period of Xiamen
Plaza

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Yan Hei and Railway
Department on 1 October 1985 for co-operation on the
construction and operation of Xiamen Plaza and as
supplemented and amended subsequently on 18 December
1987 and 21 January 1992 (the “CJV Agreement”), the
operating period for Xiamen Plaza would end on 11 December
2016. On 6 June 2005 and 20 July 2005, the Company
announced that, Yan Hei entered into an extension agreement
with Railway Department, and Fujian Enterprises (Holdings)
Company Limited (“Fujian Enterprises”) (as a guarantor) on 9
May 2005 (“Extension Agreement”), in which, amongst others,
the operation period of Xiamen Plaza will be extended for an
additional 10 years up to 31 December 2025 and a change in
the terms of the CJV Agreement in respect of the annual
amounts to be distributed by Yan Hei to Railway Department.
Pursuant to the terms of the Extension Agreement, Yan Hei has
agreed to pay annual distributions to Railway Department
during the operating period of Xiamen Plaza up to year 2025 as
set out below:

2005 to 2006 : US$70,000 per year
2007 to 2011 : US$100,000 per year
2012 to 2025 : US$200,000 per year

168 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

ERRBEZEEH

RECERHARRBEIINR-NANLSF
TA—HAIZAGEREREEZEER
ZEARBEZRORNZHE(EKRE
R—ANLEFE+_AtNBE-—ANLZ
F-A-t+t-—BRERREFT (A EH
&) RAZKREMBR T —RF+=
A+—B&®IE-RZZETRFASBR
—ETAFELA-TRH ARAEEM £
EHEERBMER(KB)AERAR ([
MERDMEERAECR _ZTZTAFH
ANBRIYERHH(EREG#]) BB
BELEZRENBN _T_AF+=
A=+t—B&R -TERBETHEHFTE
BIBIERBERECEZRERTF
E_E_AFt+A=t—H LEBEHEHE
MEFHCENRTHER 2HE LS
EmZ G - REERBRGER  CEE
AERNRERLLEHEIEE_T_HFX
Mo FEER - EEBIEMT :

—EETEREFESE : §470,000% T
—EETRF

—ETLFFE : 100,000 T
—T——F

—E——FF : & 200,000 7T
—E-FRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) &2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE (UAB LI R)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Extension of operating period of Xiamen
Plaza (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future annual distributions payments under the Extension
Agreement which fall due as follows:

B.EABALT 2RI @

ERFRE LS H @)

REERREER  AEBERBEERHH
ZARRME RENFAAELT

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEZRFR
Over five years BBAF

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
1,560,000 1,560,000
6,240,000 6,240,000
= 1,560,000
7,800,000 9,360,000

In addition, Fujian Enterprises irrevocably undertakes to Railway
Department that it will guarantee performance by Yan Hei of its
obligations under the CJV Agreement (as amended and
extended).

Railway Department is beneficially owned by the State Railway
Department. To the best knowledge, information and belief of
the directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, Railway Department is considered as an independent
third party, it has no effective interest in the operations of
Xiamen Plaza.

Fujian Enterprises is a trading conglomerate incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, and under administration of
Fujian Provincial State-owned Asset Administration Commission
of the PRC. Both Fujian Enterprises and the Company are
ultimately owned by Fujian provincial government of the PRC.
There are no common directors among Fujian Enterprises and
any member of the Group.

IS - 2 [ 5 18 () B /B 4F th A R 3B [E]
o FGEBRBCERTERESED
&REITRER) ZEE-

HEBNEDHEAASBEREERN - BE
ERELE—VIAEEREMAA  FERE
B EREERBHLBEERED SR
RBYF=T7 MHERKERBETIEE
PRAEES o

ZHEEN - RNBAEMRLZEE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. @HALTZR S @

(Continued)

Lease agreements in respect of certain EBEREE TYENEEHS
premises at Xiamen Plaza

On 13 April 2015, Xiamen Plaza as lessor and Huamin Mingrui RZE—RFWUNA+=H "EBRHMHE
(Xiamen) Tourism Company Limited (# % S (EF9)ikzE R A ABHBAMEFREZES(BEMKRESRA
al) (“Huamin Mingrui”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fujian AI(ZEFRZE]) HEEERETE (&)
Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited 4 22 2% & B 3¢ (5 [H) ERARI(EREXDFZ2EHEENW
AR AR (“Huamin Industrial”), as lessee entered into the lease BATIEAEBA  FINHERZAER
agreements in respect of the lease of certain premises at BHERENLE+—SHEE -AHAE-Z
Xiamen Plaza for a term of one year from 16 April 2018 to 15 —N\FOA+~NHEZZE—HLFEA+
April 2019, and renewed another term of one year from 16 July TEEBEHE—ESH_ZE—hE+L A+
2019 to 15 July 2020. ANBEZZE-_ZTF+A+HAB-
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Rental income received (included in Ha A
revenue from hotel operations) (BN BEXE 2 W) 714,976 822,559
Rental deposit received e U A 112,418 113,613
827,394 936,172
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted NEERRLEERD  AEFHEHEFEZER 2
with Huamin Mingrui for future minimum lease receivable as KRR HEWFBRENT -
follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EHF —ET-NF
Within one year —F N 456,000 364,000
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBEABEZHE
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: REBEESHFMMOT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Short-term employee benefits MEBTITWRET 2,375,000 2,375,000
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEEMIOEBETMEZTEegEE @A
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of RELETEBEMET -

individuals and market trend.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.BEHALTZRZ @
(Continued)
Office rental and building management fee BAZERERARAMRAENAE
of Fujian Holdings Limited company’s office SRMEEEE
Office rental and management fee were paid to Fujian ARaEERMEER LG ([EEYE])
Properties Limited (“Fujian Properties”) for the Company’s office SN BB T B I 2005 =15 F 0 7 B
at Unit 3306-08, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 3313306 E 3308 EM 2 AN EH & K
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for a term of 3 years EREELAHIF BT —AF=ZA+—
from 11 March 2016 to 10 March 2019, which were further BREEZZE—NF=HTH ZRAF
extended for 3 years ending on 10 March 2022 during the year. ELER="F " 2-_ZFE-__F=H+HIt-
Both Fujian Properties and the Company are ultimately owned EMYENRKARLEEHEENEERRKRE
by Huamin Industrial. There is no common director among B-ERMYMEMAERKE 2B RE &
Fujian Properties and any member of the Group. EHES-
2020 2019
—E-BE —T-NF
Office rental paid BENZHEAEHE 1,443,600 1,395,480
Building management fee paid ENzYEERE 163,608 163,608

1,607,208 1,659,088
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

36. A& A 7 B B AR R K &

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE REE 104,815 110,990
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,611,843 2,993,423
Investment properties "EWE 51,800,000 52,300,000
Interest in associates REERRZIRE 76,423,690 76,423,690
Investment in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIRE 207,410,730 206,187,092
Deferred tax assets ELEFTEE E 1,886,819 1,886,819
339,237,897 339,902,014
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 25 & E e YR K 305,874 321,717
Cash and bank balances Ne NIRTES 8,623,839 10,112,458
8,929,713 10,434,175
Current liabilities REEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,414,614 1,374,614
Trade and other payables H 5 N E M EEERR 1,358,273 1,359,494
2,772,887 2,734,108
Net current assets REEEEE 6,156,826 7,700,067
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAR 345,394,723 347,602,081
Capital and reserves EXRGHE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2\ G115 B A JE1L iz
Share capital B& A 895,839,029 895,839,029
Reserves & ([FOWAERLINN  (549,925,537)
Total equity BRAER AR 345,120,748 345,913,492
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 239,739 1,654,353
Deferred tax liabilities EAEFIBEE 34,236 34,236
273,975 1,688,589
345,394,723 347,602,081

ExeR T —F=-—A=THE#E
WERETIERZE 2 RBAFBRRE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2021 and was signed on its behalf by:

Chen Yangbiao Chen Danyun
Director Director
EF EF
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

36. QA B MR K /R @

Movement in the Company’s reserves AABREEE
Accumulated
losses Total
Rt &5t
At 1 January 2019 RZTE—-—NhF—H—H (552,827,514)  (552,827,514)
Profit for the year REEFERBF 2,901,977 2,901,977
Other comprehensive income for AEZEM2EEA
the year — —
Total comprehensive income for KEE2EBFERE
the year 2,901,977 2,901,977
At 31 December 2019 and at BE-_ZE—-—hE+=-HA=+-—8H
1 January 2020 BR—E—E&£—F—H (549,925,537)  (549,925,537)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (792,744) (792,744)
Other comprehensive income for REFEEMEEBA
the year — —
Total comprehensive expense for the AEEFEITLETE
year (792,744) (792,744)
At 31 December 2020 BE-ZE_-EF
+=A=+—H (550,718,281)  (550,718,281)
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 37 EWESEE

PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, Huamin Industrial, Fujian
Mingang Enterprises Co., Ltd. (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huamin Industrial) (“Mingang Enterprises”), Fujian Huamin
Leasing and the Company had entered into a capital injection
agreement, pursuant to which Huamin Industrial and Mingang
Enterprises agreed to make a capital contribution of RMB73
million and RMB27 million to Fujian Huamin Leasing,
respectively.

Upon the completion of capital injection, the equity interest in
Fuijian Huamin Leasing will be held as to 64.81% by Huamin
Industrial, as to 25.19% by the Company and as to 10% by
Mingang Enterprises.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the capital injection had not been completed.
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Particulars of Property Interests
VR Em TS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 2 — 2 —Z &+ - A=+—B It FE GABTIIR)

Particulars of investment property interests held by the Group at 31 AEER -—_ET-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HFEHEZ
December 2020 are as follows: KEYERRFBOT -

Group’s

Gross floor area Year of attributable

Investment properties Leasehold expiry (square feet) completion interest
BEEES KE

REWE HAERBH (EAR) &R E 47 FE 1 #E 22

Hong Kong
58

Commercial

[N E7ES

Shop Nos. 1, 3and 4 2047 10,464 1981 50%
on Ground Floor together

with open yard adjoining

thereto and the whole of

First and Second Floors,

Sun Ming Court,

Nos. 84-90

Castle Peak Road,

Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

FLEERK —EMEF 10,464 —NN\—%F 50%
5 1L 7E84-905%

A A

R 3K45%

JE & R

ZRIFUNR—1E

MR E

Units A, C and D on 2047 8,340 1967 100%
21st Floor, Wing On House,

71 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong

H5E ZENEF 8,340 —hARtF 100%
ke

R E R 7158

KEEEKRNE

21#A - CHDE

msEreRAT —=—=&5 175



Particulars of Property Interests (Continued)
V)3 Rz 5F 1R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (in HK Dollars) 82 — 22— &+ A =+—HILFEE (ABTHIR)

Group’s
Gross floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties Leasehold expiry (square feet) completion interest
REEHER rE
REY % B fEwm B2 (FFFR) & B 5 B
Others
Hth
Motor cycle parking space 2047 — 1975 100%
Nos. 54, 55, 56, 57 and 58 of
Yuet Ming Building,
No. 52 Yuet Wah Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
SaE —EMF - —hth%F 100%
R EHB25%
AR
2854 5556 57 &
5855 & B AN
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